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HKCAAVQ aims to be a nationally and globally recognised independent quality assurance

body in education and training, dedicated to high quality accreditation, assessment and
consultancy services.
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HKCAAVQ safeguards the credibility of qualifications under the Qualifications Framework

and enhances the quality of education and training in Hong Kong through provision of
efficient and effective quality assurance services.
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This annual report covers the reporting year from 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016 in the text and the financial report unless stated otherwise.
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Highlights of the Year
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APQN Conference 2015

HKCAAVQ participated in the Asia-Pacific Quality Network
(APQN) 2015 Conference held in Kunming on 17-19 April.
With the theme “Globalization and Diversification of Quality
Assurance (QA) of Higher Education”, the conference
gathered education professionals and specialists to
share their insights in QA processes and practices.
HKCAAVQ staff presented a paper titled “Programme
Area Accreditation (PAA): Implementation and Challenges”,
which covered topics related to the development of
programme areas, and the importance of PAA in the
context of the Four-stage QA Process.
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Workshop on Vocational Accreditation to Members
of the Hong Kong Retail Management Association
The event held on 23 April was co-organised with the
Hong Kong Retail Management Association. In the
workshop, participants were introduced to the use of
Specifications of Competency Standards as the basis for
programme design, and the process, requirements and
preparation for vocational accreditation. The event was
attended by 25 participants from 16 retail companies.
Feedback from all participants was very positive.
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Educating Online in South East Asia Workshop

Ms Dorte Kristoffersen, then Deputy Executive Director
of HKCAAVQ was invited to attend the Educating
Online in South East Asia Workshop in Kuala Lumpur
on 5-7 May. Hosted by the Australian Government
Department of Education and Training, the workshop
aimed to survey the education landscape in Asia and
share information to highlight best practice models for
development of online and blended learning across
the region. Speaking at the session titled “Quality
Assurance and Regulation of Online Higher Education”,
she presented views on regulation and QA issues of
online education and proposed possible development
approaches.
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HKCAAVQ signed MoU with Macao Polytechnic
Institute

HKCAAVQ and Macao Polytechnic Institute (MPI) have
entered into a Memorandum of Understanding. The
MoU was signed by Prof Wiliam Lee, then HKCAAVQ
Executive Director, and Prof Lei Heong-lok, President
of MPI on 17 June in Macau. The focus of the MoU is
to facilitate mutual cooperation in areas such as joint
organisation of seminars as well as exchange of ideas
and information. Under this MoU, HKCAAVQ would also
provide Learning Programme Review and consultancy
services to MPL.
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The First Forum on Sustainable Development in
Higher Education

Ms Susanna Lee, Head and Senior Registrar
(Consulting) of HKCAAVQ was invited to deliver a
presentation on “The Role of Quality Assurance in
Sustainable Programme Design” at the First Forum
on Sustainable Development in Higher Education, co-
organised by UNESCO Asia and the Pacific Regional
Bureau for Education and Hang Seng Management
College on 21 July.
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Duty Visit to New Zealand

HKCAAVQ joined a delegation of the Education
Bureau (EDB) on a duty visit to New Zealand in July
2015. During the visit, HKCAAVQ participated in the
working group meeting with EDB and the New Zealand
Qualifications Authority (NZQA) to discuss plans for
referencing the Hong Kong Qualifications Framework
(HKQF) and the New Zealand Qualifications Framework
(NZQF).

HKCAAVQ also visited ServicelQ, the industry training
organisation (ITO) for the aviation, hospitality, retalil,
travel, tourism, museums and wholesale sectors in New
Zealand to learn about the development of vocational
qualifications and the ITO’s approach to meeting the
local industry training needs.
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New Qualifications Search for Continuing
Professional Development (CPD) programmes on
the QR

Arising from the launch of a new mechanism under
the Continuing Professional Development (CPD)
of the Insurance Intermediaries Quality Assurance
Scheme (IIQAS), a new qualification type, namely
“Continuing Professional Development Programmes”
was incorporated in the Qualifications Register (QR)
in September 2015. The enhancement facilitates
the search for and easy indication of these learning
programmes on the QR.
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25 Anniversary Celebrations

The celebration of the 25th Anniversary of HKCAAVQ
began with the first thematic seminar of a series of three
on Effective Governance and Quality Assurance (QA) of
Transnational Education (TNE). The keynote speech was
delivered by Dr Anna Ciccarelli, Fellow of The University
of South Australia, on 15 September 2015. On
17 September 2015, HKCAAVQ held the major
celebration of its silver jubilee, the 25th Anniversary Gala
Dinner with close to 150 guests. The overwhelming
support from all key stakeholders contributed to the
undeniable success of the evening. Mr Eddie Ng Hak-
kim, SBS, JP, Secretary for Education, was invited
as the Guest-of-Honour and delivered a thoughtful
speech. HKCAAVQ also delivered to all guests its 25th
Anniversary publication titled “Future Directions of
Quality Assurance: Perspectives from 10 Agencies”,
which has gathered valuable insights from QA agencies
all around the world on future directions and challenges
of quality assurance.
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INQAAHE External Review Recommendations
Based on the report from the External Review Panel
that undertook a review of HKCAAVQ against the
International Network for Quality Assurance Agencies
in Higher Education (INQAAHE)'s Guidelines of Good
Practice (GGP) in June 2015, the INQAAHE Board in
October 2015 confirmed HKCAAVQ’s alignment with
the GGP. Of the twelve individual Guidelines in the GGP,
HKCAAVQ has demonstrated full alignment with eight
and substantial alignment with four of them.
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Sharing Session on “Implementing CAT at PolyU”
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and HKCAAVQ
shared their experience in the implementation of credit
accumulation and transfer (CAT) on 23 October 2015.
Colleagues of the Qualifications Framework Secretariat
(QFS) actively participated in the discussion session. The
active participation of the attendees contributed to a
fruitful exchange of ideas on CAT.
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Annual Operators Briefing 2015
HKCAAVQ organised its Annual Operators Briefing on
5 November 2015. It was well attended by some 100
representatives of academic and vocational operators.
HKCAAVQ shared with participants an overview of its
operations and new developments.
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Workshop on Writing Learning Outcomes

Learning outcomes are the starting point of outcome-
based programme development. A workshop
was arranged on 7 December 2015 with a view to
strengthening operators’ formulation of appropriate
outcome statements that reflect programme objectives
and the targeted QF Level. 37 representatives from
17 operators attended the workshop and explored the
relevant techniques in formulating outcome statements.
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Seminar on Meeting Industry Training Needs - The
New Zealand Experience

The second seminar as part of our 25th Anniversary
celebrations, Meeting Industry Training Needs — The
New Zealand Experience, was co-organised with QFS
on 6 January 2016. Mr. Dean Minchington, CEO of
ServicelQ in New Zealand was the keynote speaker.
He shared with around 150 participants, coming from
ITACs and training providers, the roles of Industry
Training Organisations in New Zealand, the approaches
ServicelQ uses for qualification design and assessment
in vocational training to meet industry needs.
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Consultation on Institutional Review Manual for
Private University Title

A consultation session on the draft Institutional Review
Manual for Private University Status was held with 19
participants from eight of the nine Cap. 320 registered
institutions on 2 February 2016. The feedback collected
led to some refinement to the Manual which was
approved by the HKCAAVQ Council at its meeting in
March.
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Highlights of the Year

QR Operators Briefing 2016

Our fifth QR Operators Briefing and the first one
that was held as a joint session with the Education
Bureau took place on 22 March as part of the HKQF
Conference. There were over 170 participants from over
75 organisations from the education and training sector
registered for the event. The briefing was targeted at QR
registered operators with quality assured qualifications
currently listed on the QR. It aimed at updating
operators on the developments of the QF and the QR.
The Operator Briefing provided a platform to exchange
ideas for further cooperation between HKCAAVQ as the
QR Authority and QR operators.
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Chairman’s Message

FRFS

Chairman
Ir Dr Alex CHAN, BBS

This is my first report as Chairman of HKCAAVQ. It is with deep pride
and pleasure to note that 2015/16 has been a very fruitful year as
we have laid a new course amidst the developments in the post-
secondary education and the vocational education and training
sector in Hong Kong.

First and foremost, this reporting year marked the 25th Anniversary
of HKCAAVQ. It is indeed a long-term yet rewarding endeavour from
modest beginnings in 1990 to have developed into a comprehensive
and well-recognised quality assurance agency in the Asia-Pacific
region over the last quarter century. In conjunction with the silver
jubilee, we took the opportunity to organise a series of activities to
take stock of our achievements and reiterate our commitment to
safeguarding the quality of education and training in Hong Kong. We
are indebted to the keen support from our many stakeholders which
made the whole celebration a great success.
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Chairman’s Message

My appointment as Chairman of HKCAAVQ coincided with the start
of a new Council term that commenced on 1 October 2015 and the
appointment of seven new members. The new Council term has
been characterised by the introduction of initiatives to strengthen
the governance of the Council, such as measures for succession
planning with the appointment of deputy chairs of our standing
committees and a new meeting schedule introducing three Council
meetings per year starting from October 2016.

Another important initiative was the launch of the HKCAAVQ
Strategic Plan 2015-19 that provides the blueprint for our future
development. It includes five new strategic directions, their principal
objectives and how we intend to achieve these aims. While the ever-
changing education landscape necessitates that we continuously
consider and enhance our practices, this third Strategic Plan of
HKCAAVQ is also the first plan covering a four-year period, i.e.
two Council terms. We have also included a mid-term review of
the Strategic Plan in between the Council terms to ensure that our
direction stays relevant and reflects the development of the sector
appropriately and effectively.

As one of our key strategic directions is to uphold the integrity of
the Qualifications Framework (QF) and the quality of education
and training in Hong Kong, HKCAAVQ has initiated a review of its
accreditation standards and criteria in 2016. The review is expected
to be completed in the second quarter of 2018. The purpose of the
review is to refine the accreditation standards and criteria, and ensure
the expectations of Hong Kong society are clearly articulated. | look
forward to sharing the developments of the review in next year’'s
Annual Report.

To further act upon the directions as set forth in the Strategic Plan,
we have also reviewed other services in the reporting year. For
instance, a Task Group formed by the Council comprising local
and international experts completed a review of the Qualifications
Assessment (QA) service in March 2016. The review concluded that
the current approach to QA is appropriate yet identified a number
of recommendations for improvement that were all approved by the
Council in March 2016. The Secretariat will be implementing these
recommendations in 2016/17 to further enhance QA’s assessment
process and tools.
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Chairman’s Message

ERFS

The education and training environment keeps evolving. Operators,
education policy makers and relevant professional bodies are facing
common challenges arising from a shrinking student population and
increased public expectation on qualifications. We have therefore
strengthened our engagement with the community through an array
of activities, including our first Open House to the members of the
public, meetings with District Councillors and members of various
Industry Training Advisory Committees and with operators through
Liaison Panels. We aim to enhance public understanding of our
services and more importantly, promote the value of our work as we
are committed to taking the sector forward to meet the demands and
expectations of the society at different levels. Our effort in community
outreach will continue in the years to come.

Finally, we bid our heartfelt farewell to our former Chairman, the
Honourable Martin Liao for his tremendous contributions since 1999
as Council member and Council Chair. Under his strong leadership,
HKCAAVQ has strengthened its foundation for a rigorous quality
assurance mechanism and it is recognised for its quality services and
professionalism. | am grateful to the Hon Liao for his enormous efforts
that have consolidated HKCAAVQ'’s position as a highly recognised
quality assurance body.

In conclusion, | wish to appeal for the continued support from my
fellow Council members, the Education Bureau, partner agencies,
education institutions and industry leaders to join us in shaping a
quality future through continuous enhancement of the quality of
education.

U r—

Ir Dr Alex CHAN Siu-kun, BBS
Chairman
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Executive Director’s Report

The last year has been a year of both consolidation and change. It
may sound like a contradiction that an organisation can consolidate
its operations while going through change. However, in my view
HKCAAVQ'’s now 25-year history and the continuous improvement of
its policies and processes have shown their worth in a time of change
and enabled the Secretariat to continue to work effectively while also
focusing on and implementing new policy initiatives.

Consolidation of Approaches

HKCAAVQ completed a review of the Four-stage Quality Assurance
(QA) approach in 2013 and the implementation of its eleven
recommendations was completed during the reporting year.

The review led to changes to the Four-stage QA Guidelines and
supporting Guidance Notes. These changes have ensured that the
information provided to operators and panel members are clearer
in terms of expectations and more focused on the purpose of a
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Executive Director’s Report

REFEHRS

particular exercise. Another guiding principle for the changes was
to more effectively reflect the needs of our increasingly diversified
group of operators. The so-called facilitation phase that on the one
hand provides operators with feedback on the adequacy of their
submissions, and on the other hand allows mature operators with
a good track record to apply for a customised approach, is an
important addition to the accreditation process. | expect that these
developments will have a positive impact on the efforts required
for operators and panel members as well as the Secretariat staff to
prepare for and conduct accreditation exercises.

The Four-stage QA Process is based on the expectation that over
time operators gain experience and strengthen their internal QA
capacity and ability to an extent that will allow them to apply for
partial self-accrediting authority, i.e. Programme Area Accreditation
(PAA). We expect an increased number of applications for PAA in
the coming years. Another important outcome of the review was the
launch of a revised classification system for areas of training of study,
an important step for all stakeholders to be better prepared to apply
for and undergo PAA.

A major task performed by HKCAAVQ is assessment of individual
qualifications. This service attracts between 3,500 and 4,000
applications a year. It is important for HKCAAVQ that this service
reflects the needs of the community and the applicants. A review
completed this year reached the conclusion that the qualifications
assessment service was performing well and it also identified
areas that could be further enhanced. The revised qualifications
assessment guidelines will be clearer and transparent for all users
when they are implemented mid-2016.

Last but not least, | cannot talk about our consolidation efforts
without mentioning the work that has gone into establishing an
IT infrastructure to underpin our services so that operators and
applicants can submit information to us electronically. This year we
paved the way for the accreditation e-portal that will be launched
mid-2016. | want to thank operators that provided input to the
development work and we look forward to working with all users of
our services to implement this initiative.
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Executive Director’s Report

Sharing of Practices

In addition to assuring the quality of operators and their learning
programmes, the accreditation processes that we organise also aim
at supporting the continuous enhancement of operators and their
internal quality assurance processes. We assist operators through
our extensive training programme and events for sharing of practices
among institutions and academic and industry experts. We have
ensured that our training programme reflects the changes to our
processes and we have also offered training sessions in learning
programme re-accreditation and determination of Qualifications
Framework (QF) credit. We also see an increasing interest from
operators and stakeholders more broadly to participate in a dialogue
about quality assurance, which is a sign of maturity in the sector. |
appreciate the strong support from stakeholders for our anniversary
seminars and quality assurance forums that have brought local
operators together to learn from and share good quality assurance
practices in relation to a wide range of topics. These events have
been greatly helped by funding from the Government’s Quality
Enhancement Support Scheme and | hope that with the support of
our stakeholders we will be able to maintain this level of exchange in
the years to come.

International Recognition

Concerted efforts by the Secretariat over an extended period of time
came to fruition in the course of the year with the positive report
from the external review panel established to conduct a review of
HKCAAVQ'’s higher education operations against the International
Network for Quality Assurance Agencies in Higher Education’s
(INQAAHE) Guidelines of Good Practice (GGP). The INQAAHE board
confirmed that we are complying with these good practices for quality
assurance agencies. With the review outcome we have achieved an
important milestone not only for ourselves but for the stakeholders
that make use of our services.
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Executive Director’s Report

REFEHRS

Breaking New Grounds

The year was also characterised by a number of new initiatives. |
would like to mention two of them, i.e. the Council’s decision to
initiate a review of the Standards and Criteria that we use in our
accreditation exercises and the preparation of the Institutional Review
Manual for Private University Title.

The standards and criteria that we use to make accreditation
decisions have an important impact on the development of education
and training provision in Hong Kong. Therefore the Standards have
to reflect the needs of society and ensure that institutions prepare
graduates well for future jobs. The current standards and criteria
were developed in the lead up to the launch of the HKQF almost ten
years ago. We believe that it is important to conduct a review at this
stage to ensure that the standards and criteria are fit for purpose now
and in the future. We look forward to the support and input from all
relevant stakeholders in the review.

As part of the Government’s launch of the Roadmap to becoming
a private university, eligible applicants are required to seek an
Institutional Review from HKCAAVQ. We are excited about
contributing to this important step for self-financing operators
that wish to become a private university. This process is a natural
development for operators that have been granted PAA status
and thus have a proven track record of institutional capacity and
capability to manage their operations and performance.
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Executive Director’s Report

New Leadership

| was privileged to become the Executive Director of HKCAAVQ in
November 2015 and 1 October 2015 saw the commencement of
a new Council term. We said goodbye to a number of long serving
local and non-local members. | want to take this opportunity to
recognise the out-going members for their invaluable contributions
in a critical period in the development of HKCAAVQ. However, we
were equally fortunate to welcome a strong group of new local and
non-local members, including a new Chairman, former HKCAAVQ
Council Vice-chairman Ir Dr Alex Chan Siu-kun. The new Council
brings a wealth of experience to the governance of HKCAAVQ. | look
forward to working with the Council under the leadership of Dr Chan
to implement HKCAAVQ'’s Strategic Plan 2015-2019.

Recognition

Let me take this opportunity to also thank Professor Wiliam Lee
Keng-mum for his leadership of the Secretariat from 2013 to 2015
and for working with the Council to set the new strategic direction
for HKCAAVQ. | also want to express my gratitude to Mr Robert
Fearnside who accepted the Council’s invitation to be Acting
Executive Director between July and November 2015 and ensured
that there was minimal disruption to the operations of the Secretariat
between the Executive Director appointments. His leadership over
this transition period was much appreciated by all Secretariat staff.

e Hikbfleaca

Ms Dorte Kristoffersen
Executive Director
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The Council
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Council Term K& {EL]

1 April 2015 to 30 September 2015
2015 F4 H1HZE2015F9 H30H

Chairman £&E Ex-officio Members ERKE

1. The Honourable Martin LIAO Cheung-kong, SBS, JP 3. Mr Brian LO Sai-hung, JP
BRIZ%E, SBS, P Et iR, P

Vice-Chairman 8|E /& 4. Professor William LEE Keng-mun

2. Ir Dr Alex CHAN Siu-kun, BBS (Ur:ﬂ 19 July 2019)
BOKIRE- BBS FRXHE(Z201567 A13H)

Non-local Members JEZ<3: 5§ &
5. Ms Ann DOOLETTE

6 Ms Aileen PONTON
7. Professor Mala SINGH
8 Professor Andrew WALDER

16



The Council
TED

Local Members 783 B¢ &

9. Mr Roger Thomas BEST, JP 16. Ms Carrie LEUNG Ka-lai
P RE
10. Professor Chetwyn CHAN Che-hin REBLL
PR B 2% 17.  Professor Arthur MAK Fuk-tat
T
1. Mr Albert CHOW Hing-pong SRERR
BB A 18. Professor PONG Ting-chuen
=] 7
12.  Professor HAU Kit-tai, BBS, MH, JP EES S

EEEZRER , BBS, MH, JP

13. Ir Dr David HO Chi-shing, JP
fAEEIELE T2, P

14.  Dr LAM Ching-choi, BBS, JP 12 10 13 11 17
MIESTE A | BBS, JP

15.  Professor Paul LAM Kwan-sing, SBS, JP
WEEHIX, SBS, JP
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The Council
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Council Term K& {EL]

1 October 2015 to 31 March 2016
2015 F10 A1 BHZ= 201643 A 31 H

Chairman £J& Ex-officio Members EAKE
1. Ir Dr Alex CHAN Siu-kun, BBS 3. Mr Brian LO Sai-hung, JP
FRIKIRE L, BBS E LA, JP

4. Ms Dorte KRISTOFFERSEN (since 2 Nov 2015)
Dorte KRISTOFFERSEN %+
2. MrRoger Thomas BEST, JP (2015511 A2 BFEH)

Non-local Members JEZ<#: 5§ &
5. Ms Ann DOOLETTE

Vice-Chairman ElE &

9 8 “ 3 5 6.  MrJames CALLEJA
7 Ms Jane von DADELSZEN
6 ! 2 ! 8.  Dr Bryan MAGUIRE
9 Professor Andrew WALDER
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Local Members 783 B¢ &
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13.

14.

15.

16.

Professor Chetwyn CHAN Che-hin
PR HIX

Ir Francis CHENG Cho-ying, MH
EER S L, MH

Mr Albert CHOW Hing-pong
EEH K-

Professor HAU Kit-tai, BBS, MH, JP
BHEREIR, BBS, MH, JP

Dr LAM Ching-choi, BBS, JP
MIEBT A, BBS, JP

Professor Paul LAM Kwan-sing, SBS, JP
WEEHIX, SBS, JP

Ms Carrie LEUNG Ka-lai
BB T

17.

18.

19.

20.
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The Council

e
=i

=

Professor Dennis NG Kee-pui
REFHE
Professor PONG Ting-chuen
BRI

Professor Paul TAM Kwong-hang
BETHIER

Mr Wilfred WONG Kam-pui, JP
=g A, JP
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The Council
TER

The Council

The Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and
Vocational Qualifications (HKCAAVQ) is formed under the HKCAAVQ
Ordinance (Cap. 1150). In 2007 it assumed the statutory roles as the
Accreditation Authority and Qualifications Register Authority under
the Hong Kong Qualifications Framework under Cap. 592.

HKCAAVQ provides accreditation services to post-secondary
education institutions and vocational education and training
institutions as well as course providers to perform its statutory
duty. Furthermore, we provide assessment services for the general
public in the form of qualifications assessment and advisory and
consultancy services in education qualifications and standards to
government bureaux and professional organisations in Hong Kong
and outside of Hong Kong subject to approval from the Secretary for
Education.

The Council is composed of members appointed by the Chief
Executive of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. As of
31 March 2016, there were 20 Council members including 5 non-
local members and 15 local members. Its local membership reflects
expertise and experience in quality assurance, education and training
as well as links with industry. The non-local members come primarily
from countries with well-established external quality assurance
systems. They provide valuable advice and global views, allowing
us to ensure that HKCAAVQ'’s approaches are in line with the latest
good international practices.

The Council has met formally twice a year. Local members has met
twice between full Council meetings.

The work of the Council is supported by three standing committees:
the Qualifications and Accreditation Committee, the Finance
Committee and the Personnel and Administration Committee. Each
Committee has its own terms of reference, which are detailed in the
Appendix.
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The Council
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The Secretariat WEER
TEENBEBEEHERETEENER
BE TEMBRIABENE  #%E

The daily operation of HKCAAVQ is undertaken by the Secretariat under
the leadership of the Executive Director (ED) supported by Deputy
Executive Directors. The ED is an ex-officio member of the Council.

As of end of March 2016, HKCAAVQ Secretariat had 97 full-time
staff, most of whom are quality assurance practitioners, seasoned
trainers or education professionals. There are also three part-time
staff including two registrars and one legal consultant.

HE2015F3AK ' (IERWEEHRS
7 HERIES - RED ANELEERE
WAL - BEREIEMSHEES - 7F
HRIE-FXRBES - ERBIEMM
FEEM R —ADAERER -

Organisation Chart of the Secretariat

WERTHRSE

. . Executive Office %
Executive Director
EAEE Corporate Communications
MR
Finance B1 &

Deputy Executive Director (Academic) Deputy Executive Director (Vocational)

Bl R (21f7) Bl ()
: Vocational Qualifications
Atﬁ'i?ﬂ?t?tli(;n Accreditation Framework
Qualifications Research and and
::c?it Assessment SRl and Training Development Qualifi<_:ations
P i ES)E mERE| B EE Register
*& e FERAR BEEEER
Z & A
Corporate Services

THE®

Note: Academic Accreditation and Audit, Vocational Accreditation and Development and Corporate Communications were
renamed as Academic Accreditation and Assessment; Vocational and Professional Accreditation and Engagement from

1 April 2016.
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Transparency is one of HKCAAVQ's values. That means that we are
committed to operating in a transparent, fair and impartial manner by
making relevant information available to our stakeholders. To further
increase transparency of our work, we have implemented a number
of initiatives during the reporting year, applicable to operators offering
academic, as well as vocational education and training programmes.

Publication of Summary Reports

Following the publication of summary accreditation reports for
Initial Evaluation (IE) and Programme Learning Accreditation (LPA)
in 2013, given the positive feedback from stakeholders, including
accredited operators and the public, HKCAAVQ expanded the scope
of publishing accreditation outcomes. Starting from January 2016,
summary accreditation reports for Programme Area Accreditation
(PAA) and Periodic Review (PR) are also published on the HKCAAVQ
website for the purpose of enhancing transparency.

The publication of summary reports has attracted interest from many
stakeholders with almost 5,200 online users having accessed the
summary reports published on the HKCAAVQ website from April
2015 to March 2016.

Publication of policy documents

To increase the transparency of HKCAAVQ'’s policy principles, we
have during the reporting period created a new “Policies” webpage
on our website under “Accreditation”. It contains a number of policy
documents relevant to accreditation for easy access, including
Accreditation Fees, Code of Conduct for Panels, Guidelines on
Observers of Accreditation Exercises, Policy on Extension of Validity
Period and Policy on Specialists Appointment and Management. We
intend to continue to enhance the interaction and build trust with our
stakeholders.

Accreditation
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Accreditation

SRR

Trialing of the facilitation phase

HKCAAVQ conducted a pre-test and pilot studies on the facilitation
approaches for accreditation between December 2013 and
January 2015. With the experience obtained from the pilot studies,
differentiation in the accreditation approach based on Operators’
track record was applied to suit the needs of operators at different
development stages and in different sectors. For operators new
to the accreditation process to increase their awareness of the
accreditation requirements, HKCAAVQ staff members may provide
initial feedback on the completeness and relevance of the evidence
submitted by operators, against the accreditation criteria. This is
referred to as the “Preview Approach”. The “Customised Approach”
gives more mature operators the ability to apply to have certain
criteria exempted from the accreditation process if the operator’s
approach to meeting the criteria has not changed since its last
accreditation exercise.
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Academic Accreditation and Audit
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MANAGEMENT COLLEGE

HKCAAVQ provides an extensive range of academic accreditation
services, including accreditation of programmes offered by post-
secondary institutions at postgraduate, degree and sub-degree
levels, and non-local learning programmes (NLP) registered or
exempted from registration under the Non-local Higher and
Professional Courses (Regulation) Ordinance (Cap 493). We also
conduct Institutional Reviews (IR) for institutions seeking registration
under the Post Secondary Colleges Ordinance (Cap 320) for degree-
awarding status.

Local Programme Accreditation

In 2015/16, HKCAAVQ conducted an Initial Evaluation (IE) at
HKQF Level 6 for an institution preparing to offer Master Degree
programmes, Learning Programme Accreditation (LPA) for a total
of 17 programmes and Learning Programme Re-accreditation (re-
LPA) for 15 programmes, with the participation of 11 operators.
The number of programmes accredited or re-accredited remained
constant compared to 2014/15. While the traditional programmes
like Business Administration, Psychology, Languages, Arts and
Engineering remained popular, we also conducted accreditations of
emerging programme areas such as Early Childhood Education and
Sports Coaching at HKQF Level 5. We also processed requests from
11 operators for substantial changes to 43 programmes. The number
of requests is similar to the previous reporting period.

Furthermore, we conducted an IR exercise for an institution seeking
registration for degree-awarding status.
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Academic Accreditation and Audit
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Non-local Programme Accreditation

HKCAAVQ has been accrediting Non-local Programmes (NLP)
registered or exempted under the Non-local Higher and Professional
Education (Regulation) Ordinance (Cap 493) since 2009. The NLP
accreditation service quality assures programmes offered in Hong
Kong leading to awards of non-local institutions. An NLP accredited
by HKCAAVQ enjoys similar status to locally-accredited programmes,
and its qualification can be recognised under the Hong Kong
Quialifications Framework (QF) and placed on the Qualifications
Register (QR).

During the reporting year, HKCAAVQ conducted IE for two
partnerships, LPA for a total of 14 NLPs and re-LPA for 20 NLPs,
with the participation of six local operators and 15 overseas partners.
As the first batch of NLPs was due for re-accreditation, there was
a significant increase in the number of re-LPAs compared to last
year. In addition, we processed requests for substantial changes
to 20 programmes involving five local operators and nine overseas
partners, compared to 27 programmes involving three local operators
and eight overseas partners a year ago.
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Academic Accreditation and Audit
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Comparison of breakdown of academic programmes accredited or re-accredited in 2014/15 and 2015/16

2014/15 % 2015/16 F EE A BN BENFESE

Local Programme Accreditation 2~ ;2 2 51 3
Doctor (L7) {BE£1

Master Degree (L6) i8 2,

Bachelor Degree (L5) 2+ 21

Professional Diploma (L5) 2% X &

Associate Degree/Higher Diploma (L4) BIE2+ /=& &
Professional Diploma (L4) %08

Master Degree (L6) FE 2241

Bachelor Degree (L5) E2+-2{f

Associate Degree/Higher Diploma (L4) Bl£+ S S08
Diploma (L3) X /&

Non-Local Programme Accreditation JE7s it 3212 57
Bachelor Degree (L5) E2+2{

Non-Local Programme Re-accreditation JEZ<ith ;322 B &
Bachelor Degree (L5) 2127

2014/15 2015/16

3 2
13 11
1 -
4 4

~
|

Local Programme Re-accreditation Z5ith ;R 28 &

NS L R
N O W O

Total &

54 66

Assessment of Non-local Courses

All non-local courses as defined under the Non-local Higher and
Professional Education (Regulation) Ordinance (Cap 493) must be
registered or be exempted from registration to be allowed to operate
in Hong Kong. The purpose of assessment of non-local courses is
to evaluate whether the standard of a course is maintained at a level
comparable with a course conducted in the home country leading to
the same qualification, while non-local programme accreditation is to
determine whether a programme meets the stated objectives and QF
standard and can be entered into the Qualifications Register.
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Academic Accreditation and Audit

DT E Mok

HKCAAVQ is appointed by the Registrar of Non-local Higher and
Professional Education Courses to provide professional advice as to
whether a particular non-local course delivered in Hong Kong leading
to the award of a non-local academic qualification or professional
qualification meets the registration criteria as stipulated in Cap 493.
We also advise the Registrar whether a registered non-local course
continues to meet the registration criteria through the assessment of
annual returns.

In the reporting year, HKCAAVQ assessed 57 new applications,
393 annual returns and 151 applications for changes to registered
courses, compared to 55 new applications, 376 annual returns and
193 applications for changes a year ago.

Compared to last year, we received more applications in the Fine Art/
Design discipline this year, a 100% increase, and more applications
for Master’s degree courses, a 90% increase.
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Academic Accreditation and Audit
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Comparison of breakdown of new applications for non-local course assessment in 2014/15 and

2015/16 by discipline

REMER D VA MRENEIMAFRE (2014/15 FE R 2015/16 F &)

2014/15

2015/16

Accounting/Business/Finance &5t/ #a%,/ 4 &t 19 19
Architecture/Surveying/Housing/Engineering i24& A& /EE /T2 16 13
Social Sciences/Education t &R % FH 5 3
Hospitality/Tourism J& 5 BR 1%, Hk 2 7 4
Law A7 1 1
Fine Art/Design iy, /&5t - 10
Science/Technology RH& /Rl =
Others EAb Y
Total 2% 55 57

Comparison of breakdown of new applications for non-local course assessment in 2014/15 and
2015/16 by geographic origin

BREREFEHED B REFIMEZEE (2014/15FE K 2015/16 F£E)

2014/15 2015/16
UK %[ 45 38
Australia B 4 8
USA 3 2 8
Ireland & F - 3
Others £ At 4
Total # % 55 57

Comparison of breakdown of new applications for non-local course assessment in 2014/15 and

2015/16 by level of study

BREBKFDEFABRENEMEAFRE (2014/15 FE R 2015/16 F &)

Doctorate 18247

2014/15

2015/16

Master 18+ 10 19
Graduate Certificate/Diploma jEiE5EE /XUR 3 4
Postgraduate Certificate/Diploma 414 FEFE & 8 5
Bachelor with Honours 24 (48 ) 2 13 14
Bachelor 212 3 1
Higher Diploma =4 3 /& 13 9
Professional Qualification B & 1% 3 4
Others Hth 1 -
Total % 55 57
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Ll7sTE N2tk

Assessment of CEF Courses

HKCAAVQ, commissioned by the Labour and Welfare Bureau (LWB),
is responsible for advising the LWB on the registrability of courses to
be included in the list of reimbursable courses under the CEF, and for
monitoring the quality and relevancy of courses after registration.

Since late 2014, we have been actively involved in the preparation of
inclusion of sign language courses under the CEF language sector.
The new inclusion was officially launched on 30 September 2015.
During the reporting period, we assessed two sign language course
applications which were subsequently approved by the LWB.

In the reporting period, HKCAAVQ conducted 85 surprise audit visits
to monitor the quality of the reimbursable courses after registration
and assessed 919 applications, including 237 new course
applications and 685 applications for amendments to registered
CEF reimbursable courses. The fall in the number of assessment of
new course applications in 2015/16 as compared with 2014/15 was
caused by a declining number of course applications received from
both self-accrediting institutions and non self-accrediting course
providers.
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Comparison of breakdown of applications for assessment of CEF new reimbursable courses in 2014/15

and 2015/16
BEESCESREENTTIZBAEEF(2014/15FE K 2015/16 £ E)

By Self-accrediting

By Non self-accrediting

Institutions Course Providers
Type of Courses HETHERE HFBTHERE
RIZEE & I B & I B

2014/15 2015/16 2014/15 2015/16

Business Services 2 AR5 81 66 2 14
Financial Services % Rl AR7S 66 44 4 -
Creative Industries & T % 34 9 11 3
Tourism Ji 2 40 11 6 6
Language & 55 59 4 2
Logistics ¥/t 4 - 1
Design (Product and Digital) %51 (2 @ M 85 & 51) 62 8 5 2
Interpersonal and Intrapersonal Skills for the Workplace - - - -
TYEMBI AR KB AT g
SCS-based B 1 R ANERIZ - 1 34 10
Total 2 342 199 66 38
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External Review against International
Standards

To enhance the positioning of HKCAAVQ as an internationally
recognised quality assurance (QA) agency, we conducted an external
review against the International Network for Quality Assurance
Agencies in Higher Education Guidelines of Good Practice in Quality
Assurance (INQAAHE GGP) in June 2015.

The INQAAHE Board informed HKCAAVQ in October 2015 that it had
accepted the conclusion of the External Review Panel (the Panel) that
we operate in comprehensive alignment with the INQAAHE GGP in
the provision of accreditation services for the higher education sector.

HKCAAVQ is included in the listing of organisations that meet the
GGP. Of the twelve individual Guidelines in the GGP, HKCAAVQ
demonstrated full alignment with eight and substantial alignment with
four of them.

The commendations made by the Panel include the following:

e The Panel commends HKCAAVQ for the high level of
commitment to the goals of the agency demonstrated by the
Council members and the Secretariat as a whole.

e  The Panel commends HKCAAVQ for its commitment to, and
success in, disseminating documentation for the policies,
procedures and criteria it uses in accreditation activities.

e The Panel commends HKCAAVQ for the high quality and
expertise of the Case Officers appointed to support the entire
process of accreditation and work as members of Panels.
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INQAAHE published the results of the alignment review on its website
in January 2016. The Review Report is available on our website.

The HKCAAVQ Council received the Review Report at its meeting
in September 2015 and accepted all the recommendations. In
response to the recommendations, HKCAAVQ will be implementing
various measures, e.g. setting up of liaison panels for academic
and vocational accreditation services to augment current methods
of ensuring operator input and facilitate two-way communication
more generally, in the coming few years to enhance our services
and accomplish our mission of being a globally recognised quality
assurance body.

Reaching out to Macau

In line with HKCAAVQ'’s positioning as a nationally and internationally
recognised QA body, HKCAAVQ has extended its local accreditation
expertise to contribute to the quality assurance development of the
higher education in Macao.

In addition, HKCAAVQ conducted workshops for academic staff at
two schools of a publicly-funded university in Macao in June 2015
and February 2016 respectively. The workshops aimed at enhancing
participants’ understanding of HKCAAVQ’s programme review
process and requirements, particularly the accreditation criteria and
standards. Both workshops were well received by the participants
who appreciated the tailor-made design of the workshops and the in-
depth illustrations provided by the facilitators.
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Development of the Institutional Review
Manual for Private University Title

At its meeting on 9 June 2015, the Executive Council advised and
the Chief Executive (CE) ordered that self-financing post-secondary
education institutions registered under the Post Secondary
Colleges Ordinance (Cap 320) (the Ordinance) should meet a
number of criteria before making an application for university title for
consideration by the CE in Council. One of them is that an applicant
operator has to have successfully gone through an Institutional
Review conducted by HKCAAVQ to demonstrate its fundamental
ability to meet the standards expected of a university in terms of
governance and management, financial sustainability, academic
environment, quality assurance (QA) and research capability.

In July 2015, HKCAAVQ was commissioned by the Education Bureau
(EDB) to develop a manual for the reference of relevant institutions
planning to undertake the Institutional Review for Private University
Title (IR) requirements for annual progress reports and audited
financial reports. In January 2016, a draft Institutional Review Manual
for Private University Title (IR Manual) was developed by HKCAAVQ
following the requirements laid down in the Roadmap for Becoming
a Private University and taking into account the feedback provided
by institutions registered under Cap 320 during a preliminary
consultation conducted in November 2015.

In February 2016, HKCAAVQ invited all post-secondary institutions
registered under Cap 320 to a face-to-face consultation session to
share their views on the draft IR Manual. Eight of the nine institutions
attended the consultation. Based on the feedback gathered, the draft
IR Manual was finalised and approved by the HKCAAVQ Council at
its meeting in March 2016 for publication in April 2016.
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Quality Enhancement Support Scheme
(QESS)

In 2014, HKCAAVQ was granted funding under the Education
Bureau’s Quality Enhancement Support Scheme (QESS) to carry
out a project titled “Enhancing quality culture and quality assurance
in post-secondary education: Trends and models from International
and local quality assurance practices” to improve quality assurance
practices and promote a quality culture within the local post-
secondary education sector. The project includes workshops on
international quality assurance perspectives conducted by overseas
experts, a series of forums for sharing of good practices among local
institutions, and development of a public web-based knowledgebase.

During the reporting period, the project has made significant
progress, with two workshops and two forums organised for
HKCAAVQ professional staff and local operators respectively.
Local speakers were invited to share their experience in institutional
governance and programme development at forums held in May and
August 2015. Two workshops on the topics of student assessment
and transnational education were conducted by international experts
from the U.S. and Australia in July and September 2015. During the
workshops, the speakers shared their insights and knowledge on
good practices with regard to the two areas. Both the forums and
workshops facilitated a fruitful exchange of experience and ideas.

The good practices identified during the forums and workshops will
be consolidated and shared on a public web-based knowledgebase,
which is anticipated to be launched in early 2017. The web-
based knowledgebase is set up to provide institutions in the higher
education sector locally or abroad with an accessible repository of
good practices gathered from local institutions and the international
QA community. It will serve as a useful information portal intended to
provide local operators with ideas to further enhance their internal QA
measures as well as information to HKCAAVQ in keeping abreast of
the latest developments in accreditation practices.
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Implementation of Case Manager
System

Experience has revealed that both operators and HKCAAVQ benefit
from a more focused effort from and communication with each
other. Case managers were appointed in the reporting period to
foster timely and effective communication between HKCAAVQ
and individual operators. In respect of academic accreditation,
case managers handle general enquiries from operator, provide
information and advice to operators on HKCAAVQ’s recent
developments, and attend meetings held between HKCAAVQ and
operators on an institutional basis.

Looking Forward

As the Qualifications Framework has been launched for a number of
years, we expect that a growing number of experienced institutions
will launch Master’s Degree programmes, seek Programme Area
Accreditation status in the near future and begin to see the seeking of
private university status as the next step of their development. As for
transnational higher education, to encourage more new partnerships
to have their NLPs recognised under the QF in Hong Kong, we will
continue to reach out to institutions, QA agencies and government
bureaux in different parts of the world to introduce the NLP
accreditation service to them. We are developing an approach to
accredit online NLP, given the increasing requests for such a service.

The decline in the student population is and will continue to be
a major challenge in the higher education sector, particularly for
self-financing institutions. While being mindful of indications that
institutions are identifying ways to cope with the challenges arising
from the decline in the student population, e.g. delivering part of a
learning programme or the entire programme online, we will continue
to refine our QA approaches and processes for handling these new
developments in the sector effectively.

To adjust to the changing higher education environment, we will
continue the close communication with different stakeholders to
ensure that there is the highest possible degree of understanding
of accreditation purposes and requirements as well as the roles
and responsibilities of operators and HKCAAVQ in the accreditation
process.
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The demand for accreditation and assessment services from the B 2008F LA » & BB LIET
vocational education and training (VET) sector has been growing HRRFEE LRI RS E kS E T
steadily since 2008. There has also been an increase in the diversity MAEBREH S E LR I e
of operators and programmes seeking our services. hiz:) 1

Accreditation Service for the VET sector BE¥ERTERE

After completing the large scale LPA and Re-LPA exercises for EF FERAREEBEIBETTK
the Employees Retraining Board last year which involved 271 HENZRETEMBEEIE  BHE271
programmes and around 2,000 entries on the QR, in the current TERIE R 492,000 8H IR EFEA M E
reporting year, HKCAAVQ completed 13 Initial Evaluations (IE) of new [ o EHR - FFERMA TR ZE
operators, 103 Learning Programme Accreditations (LPA) and 111 A MIBTIRZEWETT T 13T
Learning Programme Re-accreditations (Re-LPA) for VET operators WEMVIZ L - 103 BRZFEN 111
of various types including public organisations, education/training THRIEEE - GEFREERETENE
institutes, professional bodies, non-governmental organisations, trade W BB IEYINE  HEEE - JE
associations, and commercial corporations of different scales. BT4EE - e RS K/ EEME -

Breakdown of vocational programmes accreditation and re-accreditation

ERASHENTERE RETFERRABREEFNRXEEREHAE

QF Level Number of IE Number of LPA Number of Re-LPA
BEREEBRE AL EEE FRETEHA FREEEHA
14/15 15/16 14/15 15/16 14/15 15/16

QF Level 1 BEZRIESE 14k 1 - 19 16 119 21

QF Level 2 BFEZEIESE 2 4 11 2 38 33 138 49

QF Level 3 BEZEEE 34 22 7 44 5 58 o

QF Level 4 BFERIBE 44 2 2 16 15 11 6

QF Level 5 BEZRIEE 54 2 2 4 - -

Total A E 37 13 119 103 326 111
With the support from industries and public organisations, HERFISITERAE MBI
HKCAAVQ accredited a wide spectrum of programmes including BTRERRRIZETE - SR
pre-employment training, in-house training, in-service training, and FER - NEPE - RIS R E S
professional development programmes in various industries, such R RBERELZETE fIMER
as beauty, hairdressing, catering, elderly care service, banking and ¥ EEE . BHRE LERBE R
retail, as well as for a range of organisations including the Productivity TERTEE  MAlZ2RERESR
Council, St. Teresa’s Hospital and the Hong Kong Police College. BEENRER  EEMBRELEES

R 57 B (=
ERBhRE -

' The figures include the large scale LPA and Re-LPA exercise for the
Employees Retraining Board.
HFBERERBEIIRETHNARERIETERESEIE -
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The accreditation status of six Detective Training Programmes of
the Hong Kong Police College was granted in January 2016. The
programmes have been developed with an emphasis on workplace
learning for Inspectors, Sergeants and Police Constables to carry out
the detective tasks of their respective ranks.

In January 2016, an accreditation exercise was conducted with the
St. Teresa’s Hospital School of Nursing to accredit its Professional
Diploma in Nursing (Enrolled Nurse to Registered Nurse Conversion
Programme) (QF Level 5). Graduates of the programme also meet the
requirements of the Nursing Council of Hong Kong for practicing as
Registered Nurses (General) in Hong Kong.

Since the implementation of QF in 2008, the Education Bureau
(EDB) has formed 20 Industry Training Advisory Councils (ITACs)/
Cross-Industry Training Advisory Committees (CITAC) for various
industries with a view to developing industry-based Specification
of Competency Standards (SCS) and Training Packages. In the
development of the SCSs and the Training Packages, HKCAAVQ
was commissioned by the EDB to be the moderator. During the year,
HKCAAVQ moderated two sets of SCS-based Training Packages for
the Logistics Industry.

Operators are encouraged to develop SCS-based programmes
by adopting the relevant Units of Competencies specified in the
SCS. During the year, HKCAAVQ accredited 50 SCS-based
programmes for the Banking, Beauty and Hairdressing, Catering,
Elderly Care Service, Electrical & Mechanical Services, Information &
Communications Technology, Insurance, Manufacturing Technology
(Tooling, Metals & Plastics) and Property Management industries.
Among these, the accredited programme offered by the Hong Kong
Productivity Council is the first SCS-based programme pitched at QF
Level 5.
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As at March 2016, there are 303 SCS-based programmes (QF HZE20164F 3 A » H£BE303ERZ 161

Levels 1-5) covering 16 industries on the Qualifications Register TEHKRe HIZESH BB BRRZ(EFE

(QR). During the year, four industries have had their first SCS- LRREEA R4 EYNEFELM - e

based programmes accredited. They are the Elderly Care Service, HR - £EMETEACEE NIEESIRR)

Insurance, Manufacturing Technology (Tooling, Metals & Plastics) and BRI E NESRIETIEEN - BN

Testing, Inspection & Certification industries. BETEBRIRLTERGE - R - &Ik
B (ER - B RBE) A RBA &
LA

AORZ

Breakdown of SCS-based programmes (QF levels 1-5) on the QR (2015/16)
EEREREMNENRARE(EREBE1ZE5K) (2015/16 FE)

Industry T35 QF Level ERFZER
4
Automotive /TE - 3 1 2 =
Banking #R17% - - 6 6 -
Beauty and Hairdressing & M 3552 2 18 88 47 6 -
Catering AR % 4 2 11 - -
Elderly Care Service ZE AR5 % - 1 3 = =
Electrical & Mechanical Services 12 % - 5 4 10 -~
Information & Communications Technology = = 2 10 =
BRRHE R
Insurance R % - 1 - - -
Jewellery RE % - 4 4 3 -
Logistics #7t % - - - 4 -
Manufacturing Technology (Tooling, Metals & — - - — 1
Plastics) 2ERHE(RE - SBRER)

Printing & Publishing ENfl| & H ki % - - - - -
Property Management ]2 & 32 2 4 14 14 4 _
Retail &% - - 1 6 -
Testing, Inspection & Certification 18l K R & % - - - 11 =
Watch & Clock §E8% % - - - 3 -
Total 4 26 118 93 65 1
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In February 2016, HKCAAVQ accredited learning programmes at QF
Level 4 and QF Level 5 of the Learning & Development Department
of Group Human Resources (Retail Hong Kong), A.S. Watson Retail
(HK) Limited. One of the programmes will be the first SCS-based
programme in the retail industry pitched at QF Level 5. The validity
period of the programme will start in June 2016.

Quality Assurance Services

In the school sector, HKCAAVQ continues to be commissioned by
the Education Bureau to conduct the quality assurance study to
ensure the quality of the Applied Learning (ApL). During the reporting
period, visits were conducted to 12 ApL courses which were
delivered by seven different institutions.

Assessment of CPD Programmes

To increase the transparency and improve the efficiency of
assessment, HKCAAVQ acted upon the feedback collected from
the Year-end Evaluation of HKCAAVQ's Assessment Service for the
Insurance Intermediaries and revised the outcome letters so that
they include the information of approved activity venues, instructor
appointment criteria and maximum number of participants. The
revised outcome letters have been in use from July 2015.

During the reporting period, 105 new applications, 290 annual
re-assessments and 475 change applications were processed under
the Insurance Intermediaries Quality Assurance Scheme (IIQAS).
Compared to the previous reporting period, there was a growth of
6%, 1% and 98% for the new applications, annual re-assessments
and change applications respectively.

Apart from assessed CPD activities, there were 14 accredited
programmes under the Insurance industry being directly recognised
as qualified CPD activities under the CPD Programme of lIQAS.
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Breakdown of assessed CPD programmes for IA

RABHRRPNAFEEXREBCRERE

New Application Re-assessment Application

HRETRERE BAEERHBE HEB R
2014/15 | 99 2014/15 287
2015/16 [ 105 201516 [ 250

Enhancement of Services

To facilitate Operators preparing for accreditation, a set of new
Submission Forms for IE, LPA and Re-LPA for VET were published
in November 2015. Explanatory notes are now provided to illustrate
possible ways of presenting the information and evidence needed for
submission.

Looking Forward

With the rapid development and growing public recognition of HKQF,
together with the new initiatives and support schemes introduced
by the Government, it is expected that the demand for accreditation
service in the VET sector will continue to increase.

In view of the growing demand of accreditation services, HKCAAVQ
has been adapting its processes proactively to address the diverse
needs of our operators. HKCAAVQ will continue to perform its dual
roles to work with operators to ensure that they understand the
accreditation requirements while assuring that they meet minimum
requirements in the pursuit of quality of continuing education and
lifelong learning in the VET sector.

Course Amendment
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Qualifications Assessment

HKCAAVQ offers qualifications assessment services for the general
public, organisations, and government bureaux/departments on
qualifications awarded by granting bodies outside Hong Kong.
The assessment is conducted on an individual basis to assess a
person’s educational attainments in totality by comparing the learning
outcomes achieved through the taken learning path against a
particular level of qualification in Hong Kong. We are also engaged by
the Education Bureau to provide qualifications assessment services
for prospective teachers with overseas qualifications who wish to
apply for teacher registration in Hong Kong.

A Change in Demand for Assessment
Service

In 2015/16, HKCAAVQ processed 3,607 qualifications assessment
cases, a slight decrease of 10% when compared to the previous
reporting year. The main reasons for the decrease in service demand
is receipt of fewer applications from overseas individuals as well as
from organisations such as the international schools in Hong Kong;
and less qualifications pitched at postgraduate levels have been
assessed relating to teacher training/appointment purposes and the
Quality Migrant Admission Scheme (QMAS). Although applicants from
the United Kingdom and Mainland China remained the two major
sources of demand for our assessment services, the numbers of
applications from these countries have also been reduced.
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Qualifications Assessment Cases by Source of Application in 2014/15 and 2015/16
B (G B R FERIR (2014/15 K 2015/16 £ &)

Sources of Application
R A 2R R

2014/15 2015/16
Number Number

L) #E

Civil Service Bureau A7 8 £1% /5 91 109
Education Bureau # 5 5 165 115
Individuals &5 A+ 3,057 2,817
Other Organisations E fth #1#& 684 566
Total & 3,997 3,607
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Level of Major Qualifications held by Applicants in 2014/15 and 2015/16
HEANETESZREREE(2014/15% 2015/16 £ &)

2014/15 2015/16
Qualifications Number Number
BREE A A
Doctoral Degree 8=+ 35 33
Master’'s Degree 181 620 467
Postgraduate Diploma/Certificate j&i&E X &,/ BE 250 183
Bachelor’s Degree £+ 2,453 2,426
Sub-degree EllEi 80 76
Secondary School Level 2272 [ 134 100
Others HAth 425 322
Total 2 3,997 3,607

Place of Award of the Major Qualifications held by Applicants in 2014/15 and 2015/16
B ANEZ2FEERME(2014/15 % 2015/16 FE)

2014/15 2015/16
Places of Award of Major Qualification Number Number
TEERBERME HmAEAEE HEAE
Australia B 373 345
Canada JI&X 231 170
France A& 27 18
Hong Kong, China & BI&# 25 22
India ENE 331 232
Japan B 29 39
Mainland China & 850 768
New Zealand 4757 61 49
Pakistan E&HIH 96 56
Philippines JE2E 62 91
South Africa FE3E 57 54
Taiwan, China F [ & /& 127 189
UK & 1,145 1,060
USA %E 405 380
Others Hfib 178 134
Total % 3,997 3,607




Qualifications Assessment

Increased Interest in Recognition of
Qualifications

Taiwan continues to emerge as a popular higher education study
destination for local senior secondary graduates. In 2015/16, the
number of applications for assessment of qualifications obtained
from Taiwan increased by 33%; and the percentages of these
qualifications assessed and considered to meet the standard of
comparable qualifications under the Hong Kong Qualifications
Framework (QF) is 95%.

There has been a continual interest from the public in issues like
the recognition and authenticity of qualifications which indicates
the importance of our qualifications assessment work. Last year,
we continued to reach out to the community to enhance public
understanding of our principles and processes in conducting
qualifications assessment by delivering talks, liaising with local
newspapers and participating in radio programmes.

LG
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Qualifications assessed and considered to meet the standard of comparable qualifications under QF in
2014/15 and 2015/16*
IMEBRETEREEBEERE NEYMNEBEEKT(2014/15 % 2015/16 £E) *

Source of application
FTEEFERTEE
Australia M

Canada JIE A
Mainland China &
New Zealand 4787
UK H &

USA %E

South Africa B 3E
Taiwan & &

2014/15 2015/16
Comparable rate Comparable rate
FEREHBEE FEREHBE

ZBAD ZBAT
93% 95%
99% 100%
99% 99%

100% 98%
96% 96%
85% 96%
98% 96%
94% 95%

* The assessment is neither an institutional nor a programme accreditation,
and the result relates only to the qualifications of the individual applicant

being assessed.
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Benchmarking against International
Best Practice

HKCAAVQ has developed so-called Country/Area Profiles (CAP)
for Australia, Canada, Mainland China, New Zealand, South Africa,
Taiwan, the United Kingdom and the United States of America.
Each CAP contains comprehensive information on a country/area’s
education systems and qualifications. The CAP systematises the
accumulated assessment experience accumulated by HKCAAVQ
over the years into internal assessment reference tools. We expect
that these assessment tools will increase the quality and efficiency
of our qualifications assessment service. Under our Memorandum
of Co-operation, the National Recognition Information Centre for the
United Kingdom (UK NARIC) supported the development of CAPs.

A task group established by the Council comprising local and
international Council members and external experts, a representative
from the Education Bureau and the Executive Director of HKCAAVQ
reviewed our qualifications assessment service against international
best practices and latest developments in the local education
system. The findings were presented and the recommendations were
approved by the Council in March 2016. At present, the qualifications
assessment service is revising its processes and guidelines for the
recommendations to take effect on 1 July 2016; these include (a)
the consideration of other forms of recognised prior learning when
assessing educational qualifications; (b) adopting CAPs as the key
assessment tool in qualifications assessment and (c) updating the list
of possible award titles under HKQF as assessment outcomes.

Looking Forward

The development of CAPs and the review of the qualifications
assessment service have better aligned our qualifications
assessment approach with international best practices and the latest
developments of the local education system. The implementation
of the recommendations from the review will further improve the
quality and efficiency of our assessment work. The existing eight
CAPs (and any new CAPs) will become a major focus of qualifications
assessment’s research and development.
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Qualifications Register

The Qualifications Register (QR) is a web-based register established
by the Secretary for Education under the Accreditation of Academic
and Vocational Qualifications Ordinance (CAP. 592) containing
Qualifications Framework (QF) recognised qualifications that have
successfully undergone an appropriate quality assurance process.
As a tool for the pursuit of life-long learning, QR serves as a useful
information source for students and their parents, employees
and employers, and the education and training sector, to search
for quality-assured qualifications and their associated providers.
HKCAAVQ, in its statutory role as the QR Authority, is responsible for
developing and maintaining the QR.

Qualifications on the QR

As of March 2016, there are around 7,600 qualifications registered
on the QR, a net decrease of 14% compared with March 2015. The
decrease in QR records was mainly due to the expiry of more than
900 QR records on 31 December 2015 resulting directly or indirectly
from the requirements of conformity with the Award Titles Scheme
(ATS) and Use of QF Credit for existing programmes on 1 January
2016. The year to year comparison for the last two years recorded a
decrease of 14% (i.e. 1,200 QR records).

Reporting Period

BEFHY

No. of Qualifications & F£i B
Net Change in 2015/16  2015/16 4FZ F &1t

=

EREAMERHERREERB(SEMR
B BRSO 5928 MR LAY
— (AR EERE - SIBBERRE
VESEEREBRANERE - BEAM
RETAER  #HBE KK EE -
B  HERBIIRBERSEERRE
KB KRR IR IS - B IR AR
B EREEREEAMEBNER
MEREFEAM -

I EEERMNERE

HZE2016F3 A - #IRNERELM LM
BFFEE#7,6001E  BEFRET K
14% - 2 THEREB2016F1 511
B BELAMIRARIEBRAEEAHE
RERSHHEINER - B REES
BB HEFE N 2015512 A31 B EA
M LERNEERM - LEBEAMRF
HIE - AFEHIREFEAM ENERE
B EFERERAD T 14% (811,200 @EFL
B) o

2014/15 2015/16
8,800 7,600
N/A -14%

In the year 2015/16, the QR hit rates have recorded an annual
growth of 30% with the highest hit rates occurring in the middle of
July following the release of the Hong Kong Diploma of Secondary
Education (HKDSE) Examination results. The QR hit rates continue to
move in an upward trend and with a double digit percentage growth
recorded annually.

Reporting Period

WEFH
Annual Growth (%) F 35 & (%)

R 2015/16 F & - EEA MBI 2L E
REEFIENNB0%: MAE2015F7 A -
ENEBRECREHAERAELRE - #
RS R AE - EEAMAEAR
EXBBEIAVEFTELEMHTER -

2014/15
25% 30%

2015/16
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Award Titles Scheme and Use of QF
Credit on the QR

On 1 January 2016 and in accordance with the implementation
timetable set by the Education Bureau (EDB), the titles of all learning
programmes at QF Levels 1 to 7 registered on the QR conformed
to the Award Titles Scheme (ATS) (or have been exempted from
compliance) while all qualifications at QF Levels 1 to 4 have indicated
their QF credit values.

Credit Accumulation and Transfer (CAT)
on the QR

The number of programmes on the QR with indications of CAT
arrangements has steadily increased from over the year 783 to
986, a net growth of 26%. The self-accrediting operators continue
to be the major source of CAT providers on the QR. In parallel, we
anticipate gradual and increasing participation from the Vocational
Education and Training (VET) sector, as a result of greater and
coordinated publicity efforts by EDB and HKCAAVQ in promoting and
promulgating the QR as an information source for CAT arrangements
for quality-assured qualifications. The growth in the number of CAT
programmes for these two years is reported as below:

Reporting Period

HREFH

No. of Programmes with CAT Arrangement
BN RBREBRLTERIZNE A

Net Change in 2015/16  2015/16 FE F &1L,
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2014/15 2015/16
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Qualifications Register

Vetting and Advertisement Monitoring

HKCAAVQ as the QR Authority is vested with the statutory role to
perform vetting of qualifications uploaded by operators on the QR.
Arising from this we provide guidance throughout the process on a
needs basis to facilitate the timely listing of qualifications on the QR
and to ensure the accuracy and consistency of information published
on the QR. Of the 1,175 batches of qualifications uploaded on the
QR during the reporting period, the average vetting time per batch
was around one working day. Comparing the number of QR batches
uploaded on the QR in the last two years, there was an increase of
13% (i.e. 132 QR batches).

Reporting Period

e

No. of QR Batches Uploaded #EAHER
Net Change in 2015/16  2015/16 FE /&b

=

BRLHNEERMNE
EREERS

HEREREEGMER ARRESE
mELHEFEDNEEAM o HPHRER
BRIREIES] - LA B & & BE S B 1%
BEIABEAM - EREERM L
BREEER - REHRR LHEEA
REER/11754 B BURARGRR
BFER—ETIER - AEE LHAH
IRAEREF LT T 13% (BI132H 2z
)

2014/15 2015/16
1,043 1,175
N/A +13%

Only one misleading claim in QF-related advertising was identified
during the reporting period. This indicates the effectiveness of
the educative approach adopted for advertisement monitoring in
promoting compliance amongst the QR operators, who have become
increasingly diversified in both their nature of business and modes
of operations. A substantial decrease of 80% in the number of
misleading cases was reported for 2015/16.

Reporting Period

R H

Net Change in 2015/16  2015/16 /& F&t

No. of misleading QF related advertisement = {E&F AR E[RuME B

EREHR - BRMORABBE —EEBE
FREESEHEENNRERM - Bt r]
B EHEEBME RS NBRBS
BAbEWE - AZCE A E
BEERREIEET28 K - £2015/16
FIE - RGN AR T X F R
180% o

2014/15 2015/16
5 1
N/A -80%
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QR System Enhancement

During the reporting period, HKCAAVQ implemented a number of
enhancement projects in the QR.

QR Re-organisation: Re-classification of “Areas of
Study and Training” and Incorporation of “Sub-areas”
on the QR

In 2014, the Liaison Committee on Quality Assurance (LCQA)
conducted a review of the existing classification of 21 Areas of
Study and Training on the QR. In June 2015, LCQA endorsed a new
broader classification system of 14 Areas of Study and Training for
the QR. In light of this development, HKCAAVQ in its capacity as QR
Authority is in the process of adapting the QR system to the new
classification system by two separate phases. Phase One on the re-
classification of Areas of Study and Training and Phase Two on the
incorporation of sub-areas were successfully launched on the QR on
7 March 2016 and 14 June 2016 respectively.

Enhancement of “Export” Function of Published QR
Records in the QR “Operator/Agency Inbox”

In response to concerns expressed in the annual QR Operators’
survey about the user-friendliness of the “Export” function in the
operators’ log-in interface of the QR, the usability of this function
has been enhanced with an aim to facilitate operators to export their
published QR records in a more convenient way.

Listing of UoC codes for SCS-Based Programmes on
the QR

Starting in December 2015, a new feature was launched on the QR
for SCS-based programmes to display their corresponding Unit of
Competency (UoC) codes in the QR Record Details page. As an
interim arrangement to facilitate the updating of existing SCS records
by operators, the display of UoC codes for SCS-based programmes
on the QR will remain optional and the schedule for full compliance will
be announced at a later stage.
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Qualifications Register

New Qualifications Search for CPD Programmes on the
QR

Arising from the launch of a new mechanism under the Continuing
Professional Development (CPD) of the Insurance Intermediaries
Quality Assurance Scheme (lIQAS), a new qualification type,
namely “Continuing Professional Development Programmes” was
incorporated in the QR in September 2015. The enhancement
facilitates the search for and easy identification of these learning
programmes on the QR.

QR Operators Briefing

The fifth QR operators briefing was held in conjunction with a major
HKQF Conference organised by the EDB in March 2016. There were
over 170 participants from over 75 organisations from the education
and training sector registered for the event. The briefing was targeted
at QR registered operators with quality assured qualifications
currently listed on the QR. The briefing updated operators on the
developments in the QF and the QR and provided a useful platform
for stakeholders to exchange views and share their experiences.

Looking Ahead

HKCAAVQ will continue to strive for increasing utility and usage of the
QR as a web register in support of EDB’s policy objective for the QF
and for the betterment of the quality of the local work force through
continuing education and life-long-learning and for easy reference for
potential and current learners of Hong Kong. As an immediate goal
and in consultation with the QF Secretariat (QFS) we have embarked
on a project to develop and build a dedicated centralised CAT
database on the QR for the listing of CAT information and articulation
arrangements. We think that this CAT database will enhance the
transparency of CAT information searchable on the QR and benefit
the users in making more effective and appropriate decisions on the
next steps to take on their learning pathways.
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Research plays an important role for HKCAAVQ to ensure that our
core business and consulting services are of high quality and meet
the expectations of our stakeholders. This requires that our existing
accreditation and service standards are not only robust, but also
‘future-proofed’ as far as possible. It is important that HKCAAVQ
acts proactively and proportionately in the highly dynamic education
and training environment and that our accreditation approach is
able to support sector-wide quality enhancement by encouraging
development of internal quality assurance capacity of operators.

Review of Accreditation Standards and
Criteria

Since the launch of the Four-stage Quality Assurance Process in
2008, many developments have taken place in the education and
training sector in Hong Kong, while international practice in quality
assurance and accreditation have also evolved significantly. To
ensure that the HKCAAVQ accreditation standards continue to be
contemporary, robust, and able to support innovation, HKCAAVQ
has found it timely to initiate a review (the Review) to consider
whether the accreditation standards and criteria in the different sets
of Guidelines and relevant Guidance Notes sufficiently address the
current and foreseeable developments of the sector, and reflect the
expectations of the Hong Kong society of operators and learning
programmes.

The Review started in late 2015. It is monitored by a Taskforce of
the Council, and it will be supported by research and analysis on
international practices, past accreditation experiences, and input
from stakeholders. Stakeholders’ views will be collected via an
Advisory Panel, focus group meetings and consultation seminars with
stakeholders, as well as the HKCAAVQ's website. HKCAAVQ has
successfully obtained funding from the Qualifications Framework (QF)
Fund to support the Review.

The Review is expected to be completed in early 2018, and the
revised standards and criteria will be adopted for use from 2019.
Information on the progress of the Review can be found on a
dedicated webpage on the HKCAAVQ website.
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Accreditation Standards for the
Institutional Review Manual for Private
University Title

In July 2015, the Education Bureau (EDB) promulgated the Roadmap
for Becoming a Private University (Roadmap). As stated in the
Roadmap, an institution may commission HKCAAVQ to carry out
an Institutional Review to evaluate whether the institution has an
appropriate academic environment, including institutional structures
and processes, resources, QA mechanisms and academic plans
befitting the status of a university. HKCAAVQ was commissioned by
EDB to develop an Institutional Review Manual for Private University
Title for this purpose. The development of the accreditation standards
in the manual followed the requirements stipulated in the Roadmap,
and was supported by research and analysis of relevant local and
international standards. During the development, potential applicants
were consulted using a draft version of the accreditation standards.

Stakeholders’ Feedback

As a learning organisation, HKCAAVQ strives to continuously improve
its efficiency and effectiveness through systematic collection and
analysis of feedback from operators, panel members and experts.
Surveys of panel members and experts are conducted in-house,
seeking views on the accreditation process and the support provided
by HKCAAVQ. In 2015, 95% of panel members and experts
indicated positive responses in all questions. This represents an
increase of 2% as compared to the previous year.

As per the previous year, we continued to engage an external
agency to undertake the annual online survey on the accreditation,
assessment and QR services. Operators were invited to provide
feedback on the tools and processes. Among a total of 404
operators who had used our service(s) in 2014, 268 of them
responded to the survey (a response rate of 66%). The mean scores
of Overall Satisfaction measured on a five-point scale range between
3.60 and 4.14 for different services, which is similar to the findings
from the previous year and representing a high level of satisfaction
among operators.

B AR FF = F M (BB FAAL
REBRH) WFAEEE

HBEBN2015F 7B AM IR AT
REMKEGE ] (BREE)  REEE T
o B A R AT R R T AT
LEERERER B HEENENIRE - 8
ERREBRER AR - ERREH
SIFEGETE - BMEIEA—FTAZE - 5t
It FERIHBERZEHTET [BER
FEFM(EBLLIAERE) ] LT
EFMAMFTEZETRIERQRE S
FIRAH E sk - I3 iR ¥ ANt 1 BB AE RS
IEAEEITIR R M MHIET o FEHET 8
B FERYRERNTEFMRAE
BRI RERA o

B ENER

ER—FEBLKE  FEREBAR
FEREERE - FPR/AEKE M
BREXERERNBRLETHI - A
FRBIR AR A TAERRK - SPE/MERK
BMPBRERERBERZBERHER
AERAMAR - RTREFERIEMN
FEREHEANRSE S - £2016%F -
95% WRFE/ MK B MBERYAERE
fEHIEmEIE - B EFIER2% -

—WEEE - ST REERRE N EE
WEEIETE I hkEFEAMREN
EMETEZRLAE  #AEHEFER
FE M NFTEIEEI% o 7220144 -
HBE 404 R 2ERELFRTER L
AR - HAh 268 AEHEIE - BIE R
R66% c BERMBEELSD RBEBEINE
=% FHEERISE0N4142H 0 4
REXFIEENL - BREREHTE
BEIRHAREEABE -

51



52

Research, Consultancy and Training

A3 ~ RARIARFE K233l

In response to feedback from operators on the need for more
guidance during the accreditation process, HKCAAVQ has refined
the Facilitating Phase to help operators who are new to the Four-
stage Quality Assurance Process and to bring together information
about the track record of accredited operators to assist in
HKCAAVQ's identification of accreditation focus(es). In addition, the
accreditation tools, such as Submission Forms, have been revised
with explanatory notes to help operators focus on providing the
essential documents as evidence of their implementation of their
quality assurance mechanism and programme information.

Consultancy Services

HKCAAVQ provides consultancy services to organisations and
government bureaux both in and outside Hong Kong. Key projects
undertaken by HKCAAVQ in the reporting period included a
pilot study on programme accreditation commissioned by the
Tertiary Education Services Office (GAES) of the Government of
Macao Special Administrative Region. The on-site visit for the pilot
accreditation exercise took place in December 2015 with a view to
refining the Macao Government’s relevant guidelines and process
for finalisation by 2016. We have also provided training workshops
commissioned by GAES and a higher education institution in Macao.

HKCAAVQ also completed phase 1 of a feasibility study of alignment/
recognition of professional qualifications under the HKQF. The study
was commissioned by the Education Bureau of the Government
of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. The study outlined
potential ways to align and/or recognise professional qualifications
under the HKQF, making reference to international practices and
taking into account unique local contexts.
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Specialists Appointment and
Management

HKCAAVQ engages specialists with relevant experience and
expertise for participation in accreditation exercises, and other
assessment and consultancy work as required. For this purpose,
HKCAAVQ maintains a Register of specialists. At the end of the
reporting period, the Register comprises 730 specialists covering
major industries and areas of study and training in Hong Kong.
These specialists are practitioners from various industries as well
as academics who have specialised knowledge and experience in
areas such as organisational management, programme development,
delivery and management as well as quality assurance. About a
quarter of these specialists reside outside Hong Kong. Drawing
on their experience and expertise, these non-local Specialists are
normally engaged to provide an international perspective in academic
accreditation exercises.
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Training and Capacity Building

Capacity building is a key strategic direction of HKCAAVQ to
enhance the accreditation and quality assurance capacity of
programme operators, specialists, and HKCAAVQ staff. With
the new developments in the higher education and vocational/
professional sectors, training needs focusing on specific topics
have been identified. In response to these needs, thematic training
workshops are developed on specific areas and topics going beyond
those covered in the regular workshops. The thematic workshops
developed for programme providers covered:

° the features of accreditation for programmes at QF Level 5 or
above,

° development and accreditation of SCS-based programmes,
o assignment and assessment of QF credit, and
° developing statements of learning outcomes.

The thematic workshops developed for specialists covered the
practical skills in evaluating evidence throughout the accreditation
process, and questioning at site visits. To encourage the adoption
of the Policy, Principles and Operational Guidelines for Credit
Accumulation and Transfer (CAT) published by the Government,
the Education Bureau commissioned HKCAAVQ to run a series of
thematic workshops on CAT. Three of the workshops held within the
reporting period were attended by 60 participants from 30 different
providers.
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In addition to regular and thematic workshops, HKCAAVQ also
provides tailor-made training to meet the specific needs of individual
providers. In 2015-2016 HKCAAVQ delivered eight on-site tailor-
made training workshops to providers on request, which indicates a
genuine demand for our training services. In April 2015, HKCAAVQ
was invited to co-organise a seminar on vocational accreditation with
the Hong Kong Retail Management Association. The seminar was
attended by 25 participants coming from 16 retail companies.

As part of our staff development strategy, internal training workshops
were provided to staff on topics related to quality assurance and
accreditation. The topics were identified arising from the annual
appraisal exercise.

A summary of the capacity building events conducted during the
reporting period is provided below.
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Breakdown of Capacity Building Events (1 April 2015-31 March 2016)
FERERITIEEEE (201554 A1 B £ 201653 H31H)

Type of
Activities
SEEER

Regular Workshop & Hi L {E45

Thematic Workshop 278 T {E

Tailor-made In-house Training Workshop ‘& #% & 4% & T {ELh
Sub-total 45t

Thematic Workshop 278 T {Ed5
Regular Workshop &8 T {ELs
Sub-total #5t

Number of
Sessions
BPIZ IR

For Specialists 2%

Number of

Number of Operators
Participants SENRE

ZH AR EmEHE

7 223 119
7 187 80
8 248 23
22 658 222
3 88 NA
2 43 NA
5 131 NA

For Staff :;FEFBE

Workshop L{E¥s 2 70 NA
Sub-total #:t 2 70 NA
Total &5t 29 859 222
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Research, Consultancy and Training

A3 ~ BRRIARES Be3Ssl

Effectiveness of training is systematically monitored through FEHFBL2MEZBRAS - AEAIA
participants’ feedback, pre/post-tests and annual post-workshop FEEINTIEHRBURET - REEEEEZH
evaluation. In general, the overall satisfaction of the training activities TERIAAE - FEM T - EEE AR
was high. Trend analysis of mean scores' shows that there is a BREEERS  WTE—MZz2¥H9E
general increase of satisfaction for both specialists and operators, DBEPTR - EhE RNERETERR
which is shown below in Figure 1 and 2. REMNEIREEAME °

Figure 1: Degree of satisfaction of Specialists on Capacity Building Activities
B— EXREBIEFBNREE

Mean Scores
FIED

5.0
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Figure 2: Degree of satisfaction of Operators on Capacity Building Activities
B—  REENREHEIEBNREE

Mean Scores
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' *Mean score of event is calculated from the degree of agreement of T EIEENEHE SRR INE S [
participants on the statement of “the overall quality of the event was high”, M= ESAEE | WAt 505
with score 5 for “strongly agree” to 1 for “strongly disagree”. EAMBERT1 A AIEETRESESNA

FERBIELFD
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Looking Forward

Research and training go hand in hand in supporting the strategic
direction of providing high quality services to our diverse clients. It
is essential for HKCAAVQ to keep abreast of major developments
and trends in education and training, and apply appropriate
refinements to its accreditation approach. This can only be achieved
with wide consultation, leveraging on our accreditation expertise
and experience, and supported by solid research on local and
international theories and practices in quality assurance. HKCAAVQ
has signed bilateral Memoranda of Co-operation/Understanding with
ten quality assurance agencies or regulatory bodies outside Hong
Kong. Such connections are important for HKCAAVQ in keeping
itself abreast of the latest development to support and enhance
its services, particularly in the context of conducting the Review of
accreditation standards.

Based on HKCAAVQ's track record and experience in consulting
locally and internationally, HKCAAVQ has embarked on a strategic
initiative to proactively develop and promote its consulting services
to local and overseas clients from the public and private sectors,
initially in Macao, Mainland China and South East Asia. Through its
consulting services, HKCAAVQ offers its clients advice and services
related to policy and implementation of quality assurance, education
and training, assessment of qualifications, programmes, institutions
and non-QF institutional and programme review.
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External Liaison and Engagement

4 [ Fa

HKCAAVQ 25th Anniversary Seminar
Meeting Industry Training Needs -
The New Zealand Experience
«

FIIMEEER

HKCAAVQ places prime importance on building strong links with
a wide range of stakeholders not only to keep abreast of the latest
developments in various sectors and industries, but also to share our
quality assurance practices with education and training institutions,
government authorities, partner agencies and members of the public
both locally and internationally. We support this strategic objective
by reaching out to stakeholders through strengthened dialogue and
active engagement.

Celebrating HKCAAVQ'’s 25th Anniversary

Over the past quarter-century since our inception in 1990, we
have proactively contributed to and supported developments in
the global quality assurance community. HKCAAVQ celebrated its
25th Anniversary with a series of seminars and events. Two out of
three thematic seminars were organised in September 2015 and
January 2016 titled “Effective Governance and Quality: Assurance of
Transnational Education” and “Meeting Industry Training Needs — The
New Zealand Experience” respectively. The events attracted around
350 participants and overseas experts, local representatives of higher
education institutions, professional bodies, training providers and
Industry Training Advisory Committee (ITACs) participated and shared
their views on the education development from different perspectives.
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In addition, a publication titled “Future Directions of Quality Assurance —
Perspectives from 10 Agencies” was published in September 2015 with
an aim to take stock of the international quality assurance developments
over the past 25 years and to set the course for the future. This
publication is a special collection of observations and analysis of the
current situation, future direction and challenges of quality assurance
in Hong Kong and eight countries around the world, namely Australia,
Dubai, Ireland, Japan, Malaysia, New Zealand, Singapore and the
United Kingdom. HKCAAVQ has forged solid relationships under the
Memoranda of Cooperation/Understanding with the quality assurance
bodies in these countries.

& 8 4l Bk 3R S GY S

. 'ng Cov "

‘v Accreditation of
Qualifications

Furthermore, an Open House was held on 23 April 2016 at the
HKCAAVQ office with the participation of District Councillors,
members of Industry Training Advisory Committees, representatives
from operators and secondary schools as well as the local
community. The Open House was organised as a means to raise
public awareness and enhance understanding of our quality
assurance work, and showcase our efforts over the past 25 years.

The programme of the Open House included introductory talks,
briefing sessions on our services, live demonstration of the
Qualifications Register (QR) and guided tours. The event was well
received by the local community members and attracted more than
200 visitors. We look forward to strengthening these ties in the future.
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Promoting Local Engagement

As set forth in the Strategic Plan 2015-2019, HKCAAVQ is
committed to raising public awareness of HKCAAVQ'’s quality
assurance activities in Hong Kong by regularly organising seminars,
workshops and meetings to provide key local stakeholders with
information and updates on our services.

Last year, we organised/co-organised a total of 10 local events,
including the Hong Kong Qualifications Framework (HKQF)
Conference “QF for Mobility and Progression: Collaboration with EQF
and Implementation of CAT” hosted by the Education Bureau. The
purpose of the conference was to discuss how to support mobility
and progression of learners through relevant learning pathways and
employment opportunities within and outside Hong Kong through
collaboration between the education and the business sectors. The
conference also served the purpose of our annual operator briefing
and it provided an important opportunity for HKCAAVQ to update
programme operators on the latest developments. Topics included
enhancements of the QF and QR, such as the introduction of the
Credit Accumulation and Transfer (CAT) Operational Guidelines
and the QR re-organisation project necessitated by the revised
classification system for areas of study and training. Apart from
that, we were invited to present at the First Forum on Sustainable
Development in Higher Education co-organised by UNESCO-APEID,
Bangkok and Hang Seng Management College, and to elaborate on
the role of quality assurance in relation to sustainable programme
design based on our accreditation experiences.

FIIMEEER
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In addition, to address the public concern regarding issues of
recognition of qualifications, we spoke at a number of career
guidance events to introduce our qualifications assessment service to
teachers. They were well received by the teaching professionals.

Building on International Connections

For the purpose of continuous improvement, HKCAAVQ actively
engages with relevant quality assurance agencies worldwide through
regular contact and collaboration. These links directly benefit our
wish to reference best practices through benchmarking against
international standards, while they also support our vision to be a
nationally and globally recognised quality assurance body.

In 2015/16, HKCAAVQ signed two new Memoranda of Agreement/
Understanding with the Knowledge and Human Development
Authority (KHDA) in Dubai and the Macao Polytechnic Institute
(MPI) to facilitate mutual cooperation in quality assurance such
as exchange of information, sharing of knowledge/publications
and review of learning programmes. We have also renewed our
Memorandum of Understanding with the Japan National Institution
for Academic Degrees and University Evaluation (NIAD-UE) for a
period of three years to continue our strategic alliance in improving
the quality of higher education in both economies. HKCAAVQ and
the Quality Assurance Agency for Higher Education (QAA) of UK are
exploring ways to conduct joint reviews of non-local programmes
offered by the UK operators in Hong Kong. This initiative is aimed to
minimise the workload of both the agencies and the operators while
ensuring that quality is still assured adequately within the contexts of
the quality assurance approaches within the two economies.
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Building on its international partnerships, HKCAAVQ continues its
effort in collaborating with overseas quality assurance agencies in
safeguarding the quality provision of transnational education. Such
an example is the “Quality Beyond Boundaries” (QBB) Group that
we have participated in since 2013. The aim of the QBB Group is
to develop a zone of trust among the partners that constitute the
foundation for sharing information, QA practices, reviewers, and
to explore concrete ways to facilitate joint quality assurance of
transnational education.

In the year under review, HKCAAVQ participated in 14 international
conferences and delivered speeches in four of the conferences
to share our expertise, i.e. Educating Online in South East Asia: A
workshop for higher education policy makers and practitioners in
May 2015, the ASEAN Quality Assurance Network Seminar and
Roundtable Meeting in September 2015 themed “Quality Assurance
in ASEAN: Issues, Challenges and Outcomes” and a global
conference titled “The New Landscape of Higher Education” by the
Observatory on Borderless Higher Education (OBHE) in London
in December 2015. These events provided valuable opportunities
to exchange information, experiences and best practices with QA
practitioners around the world.

HKCAAVQ received a number of international delegations from
government authorities, quality assurance agencies and education
institutions including Ningbo Education Bureau, Fiji Higher Education
Commission and Jiangsu Open University.

In July 2015, our staff joined a delegation of the Education Bureau to
New Zealand that met with the New Zealand Qualifications Authority
(NZQA) to discuss plans for referencing the HKQF and the New
Zealand Qualifications Framework (NZQF) and other collaborative
projects.

FIIMEEER
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Aligning with Global Standards

HKCAAVQ aspires to be a “nationally and globally recognised
independent quality assurance body in education and training,
dedicated to high quality accreditation, assessment and consultancy
services.” As set forth in our Strategic Plan 2015-2019, our
endeavours in that regard culminated in the approval by the Board of
INQAAHE as a quality assurance body comprehensively aligned with
the INQAAHE Guidelines of Good Practice (GGP). HKCAAVQ applied
for and was granted affiliate status with the European Association
for Quality Assurance in Higher Education (ENQA) in April 2015.
ENQA is an umbrella organisation representing quality assurance
organisations from the European Higher Education Area member
states, its affiliation status allow us to keep abreast of the quality
assurance developments in Europe and to establish closer links with
other ENQA agencies.

Looking Forward

HKCAAVQ values the collaboration with our many stakeholders to
ensure that we are up-to-date with relevant developments in our
working environment. In order to support the achievement of this
aim, we will continue to maintain effective communications with
our counterparts both locally and internationally, as this would not
only raise the public awareness of our services and the quality of
vocational, professional and post-secondary education in Hong
Kong, but also ensure that we continuously benchmark our practices
with relevant practices and developments overseas.
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AIT5ERES

Independent Auditor’s Report
BIKEERSE

TO THE COUNCIL MEMBERS OF

HONG KONG COUNCIL FOR ACCREDITATION OF

ACADEMIC AND VOCATIONAL QUALIFICATIONS
ERBMRBXERTER

(Established under the Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of
Academic and Vocational Qualifications Ordinance)

We have audited the financial statements of Hong Kong Council
for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications (the
“Council”) set out on pages 68 to 109, which comprise the statement
of financial position as at 31 March 2016, and the statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in reserves and
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

The Council Members’ Responsibility

for the Financial Statements

The council members are responsible for the preparation of financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and for such internal
control as the council members determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with section 15 of the Hong Kong
Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications
Ordinance (Cap.1150), and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.
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AIT5ERES

Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
council members, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Council as at 31 March 2016, and of its financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

23 September 2016
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

FENRSEE
For the year ended 31 March 2016 &#Z - ZF—~F=A=+—HIFE
NOTES Htit 2016 2015
HKS$ B# HKS /&%
Income WA
Accreditation fees 7128 & 52,842,290 39,313,925
Advisory and consultancy fees =4 5 Fl&a R & 22,283,104 16,939,179
Qualifications assessment fees & FF &7 (i & 8,708,233 8,745,617
Qualifications registry fees &t & 2,943,955 2,247,276
Government grants B i i B/ 7,105,819 4,512,456
Investment income & & YA 5 725,012 1,290,059
Other income E AU A 6 31,378 1,759,420
94,639,791 74,807,932
Expenditures Xz i
Staff costs 8 TR (60,207,787)  (53,876,632)
Administrative expenses 7T & A (16,703,053) (15,357,534)
Direct accreditation/consultancy costs & # #F25 B8 Ak 4 (11,625,120) (9,902,811)
Council meeting and committee expenses N B E@H R E S @ H (885,383) (655,488)
(89,421,343) (79,792,465)
Surplus (deficit) for the year A& FE Rk (EiE) 7 5,218,448 (4,984,533)
Other comprehensive (expense) income HEtt 2 E (X ) Uz
ltemns that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
HignjpeE R 18m ) EE -
Avalilable-for-sale equity securities: ] fi &I AE % -
Changes in fair value recognised during the year
RFEEDHRAABENE (2,477,750) 844,624
Reclassification to profit or loss upon disposal
HEREFHERER - (1,833,736)
Other comprehensive expense for the year
FEEHMEZERH (2,477,750) (989,112)
Total comprehensive income (expense) for the year
AFEERERES ()& 2,740,698 (5,973,645)
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Statement of Financial Position

FAFEAR TR
At 31 March 2016 A=—Z—R~F=HA=+—H
NOTES Wit 2016 2015
HK$ & HKS$ B
Non-current assets 3E R BN EE
Fixed assets [EJE & E 9 8,342,005 17,085,682
Investments 1% & 10 12,272,150 15,804,941
20,614,155 32,890,623
Current assets HREIEE
Investment % & 10 1,027,734 -
Accounts and other receivables & U BR 7} A1 £ i [ U7k 11 9,154,578 7,140,443
Bank deposits and cash $R1T1ER N IR & 12 65,506,342 41,845,015
75,688,654 48,985,458
Current liabilities B & &
Deferred government grants iE LB AT ## BS 13 3,462,211 3,522,573
Deferred revenue WA 14 19,221,111 6,881,141
Other payables and accruals Eth fE 15 BR 5% & FE R+ & FA 5,277,585 5,857,545
Provision for staff gratuities & T #7;mEl& %EH# 15 3,622,749 2,287,058
31,583,656 18,548,317
Net current assets B & & FE 44,104,998 30,437,141
Total assets less current liabilities EEAE BRI A E 64,719,153 63,327,764
Reserves fi& & 16
Accumulated surpluses 251 &4 58,308,191 53,089,743
Investment revaluation reserve 1% & & i # (1,338,540) 1,139,210
Total reserves f#&E #8458 56,969,651 54,228,953
Non-current liabilities JEREN & &
Deferred government grants JE B AT 1 BS 13 5,344,361 6,821,720
Provision for staff gratuities & T £95m Bl & X 15 2,405,141 2,277,091
7,749,502 9,098,811
64,719,153 63,327,764

The financial statements on pages 68 to 109 were approved and
authorised for issue by the Council on 23 September 2016 and are

signed on its behalf by:

v r—

Chairman /&

KERZ-ZZE—R"EFALA-+T=BHEL
RETEHNE68E 109 B2 B
Wi FIIALTHREREE

e Hikbfleaca

Executive Director #8#%
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Statement of Changes in Reserves
FBirgax

For the year ended 31 March 2016 {2 - — "G =A=+—HItFE

Investment
Accumulated revaluation
surpluses reserve Total
wE
RET A ES Ry &5
HK$ HK$ HK$
ot ok ok
At 1 April 2014 A 2014F4 A1 H 58,074,276 2,128,322 60,202,598
Deficit for the year 784 [Z 518 (4,984,533) - (4,984,533)
Other comprehensive expense for the year A& Hith 2 & % H - (989,112) (989,112)
Total comprehensive expense for the year 2 xx H& 5 (4,984,533) (989,112) (5,973,645)
At 31 March 2015 and 1 April 2015
MR2015F3 31 HM2015F4 A1 H 53,089,743 1,139,210 54,228,953
Surplus for the year 754 [ B 5,018,448 ~ 5218448
Other comprehensive expense for the year A& Hith 2 H % H - (2,477,750) (2,477,750)
Total comprehensive income (expense) for the year 2 E 25 (2 H) &5t 5,218,448 (2,477,750) 2,740,698
At 31 March 2016 72201643 A31 H 58,308,191 (1,338,540) 56,969,651
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Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZ - —XF=FA=+—HILFE

NOTE fizt 2016 2015
HKS$ &% HKS B ¥
Surplus (deficit) for the year 24 E 2 &k (E518) 5,218,448 (4,984,533)
Adjustments for: FHEIER :
Depreciation #T& 9,475,451 8,550,210
Dividend income & B A (472,230) (919,639)
Interest income F BUZA (252,782) (370,420)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale equity securities
HE A ERARE SRS - (1,690,547)
Gain on disposal of fixed assets & B E & & W et (2,850) (3,230)
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital
LEEREPRNLERERE 13,966,037 581,841
Increase in accounts and other receivables Ji& U B 7k R0 EL th & Y F I8 hn (2,050,335) (352,386)
(Decrease) increase in deferred government grants &2 B 8 B Ot ) 386 0 (1,537,721) 1,489,214
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue iEFEU AL HN Rt 4>) 12,339,970 (1,545,750)
(Decrease) increase in other payables and accruals
Hitb A BRRANE R & A OBl 180 (579,960) 1,988,289
Increase (decrease) in provision for staff gratuities
8 TA MmN S EEIE oK) 1,463,741 (1,141,710)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
EESETE RN S T 23,601,732 1,019,498
INVESTING ACTIVITIES 2 &5E 8
Payment for purchase of fixed assets B A &l & & & 7k (735,614) (4,087,910)
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets & & F & & TS H 6,690 3,230
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale equity securities
& A S RRANEE S AS FOR - 12,560,801
Payment for purchase of available-for-sale equity securities
AR ERABHNR - (12,433,250)
Decrease (increase) in bank deposits with maturity
of more than 3 months at acquisition
AL = & A LA R BRI ERTT I 50R A (3800) 2,032,960 (10,055,7083)
Interest received 2 4 F & 316,290 397,306
Dividend received 2 4% 2 472,230 919,639
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES
REFHEE(FA)NRSFE 2,092,556 (12,695,887)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
RERRESEYRMORD) FH8 25,694,288 (11,676,389)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR
FORERAESEEY 21,757,731 33,434,120
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR
FRAERAEEEY 12 47,452,019 21,757,731
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016 &#Z - ZF—~F=A=+—HIFE

1.

STATUS OF THE COUNCIL

Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and
Vocational Qualifications (the “Council”’) is a body corporate
established under the Hong Kong Council for Accreditation
of Academic and Vocational Qualifications Ordinance. Under
the Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications
Ordinance (Cap. 592) (the “Ordinance”) the Council
assumes its statutory role as the Accreditation Authority and
Qualification Registry (“QR”) Authority under the Qualifications
Framework (“QF”). As the Accreditation Authority, the
Council is responsible for developing and implementing the
standards and mechanisms for accreditation of academic and
vocational qualifications to underpin the QF and for organising
the accreditation exercises for the purposes as specified
in the Ordinance. The Council also provides advice to the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
(the “HKSAR Government”) on the registration of non-local
academic and professional courses, the assessment on non-
local qualifications and also on educational standards and
qualifications generally. The Chairman, Vice Chairman, all other
Members and Executive Director of the Council are appointed
by the Chief Executive of the HKSAR Government. Also, the
determination of accreditation fees, the financial budget and
other operating policies of the Council are approved by the
HKSAR Government. Therefore the Council considers itself to
be a government-related entity.

The registered office address is 10 Siu Sai Wan Road, Chai
Wan, Hong Kong.

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
(HK$), which is the same as the functional currency of the
Council.

HFERBMRBRER
AERNER

BEPMEBEEEFER( A
Bl R EMEBEERE
FEBIGEPDKLEEAERE - £
(B RBEEREFEGRD) (F
528 )T ARKIEEREER
BTNEAENFEERREERM
ER - ERIEER  KARME
MEBEEEFEGRIDERLE
RSB R EFENENTER
Wl MERBERBOER R
EITPEEZ - WIN NBIE
B BB E A B R EERIE
Bl BB AN B E R RF (S
INRBEHEKENEE  MF
B4 BT B B (BT )) SR 4t
BER-AREFE BIXE A
REMEHEIRBFTEREE
R B NBAHIFTOFE
WE - FRIEEME AL EHE
BERBTZE - Bt NRR
BABARESBRERAEEE

R

ENCPASAEE SRR W
B/ PEEB 05

AP BERIABETEE D2
5l mESITIRRBZNEEE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBI (E)

For the year ended 31 March 2016 2 - —~"F=ZA=+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

The Council has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time in current year:
Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material effect on the Council’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in these financial statements.

2.

FERTE] RAEMERT &
ARBHREEA(E
R B®EZER])

RAFE  XEBBEREBUATE
BRI B EM B RS ER -

EEEHEN  ATEMEE
E195% EEHR
(1BFTA)

ERMBHRE BAEVBRREER
ER(ERIA) —E—TFE-F

——FREBz
FEME

HRYBwmE AEVBmEEN

ERI(ERTAR) —ZT—F%
—E-=FRH
2 FEE

RAFERBEETEEVHR
FEAS EHARFEIBEFE
KRz BB RE TR R, St
EWBHRERAMB 2 REERE
HEERFE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBI (E)

For the year ended 31 March 2016 &#Z - ZF—~F=A=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

The Council has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 14

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 2
Amendments to HKFRS 11

Amendments to HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 27
Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 7
Amendments to HKAS 12

Financial Instruments'

Regulatory Deferral Accounts?

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers!

Leases®

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions’

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations®

Clarifications to HKFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts
with Customers'

Disclosure Initiative®

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation®

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2012-2014 Cycle?

Agriculture: Bearer Plants®

Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements®

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture*

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception®

Disclosure Initiative®
Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses®

FERFET REIETE
BYMBEREERN(H
BYMBEHREZER ]
(%&)

B3 K I8 A R T A E A A6 1R
ok A BT BT AR A 8T BB
TR %R

BAMBASEASOR  2RIA

BRMBREERS 4R EERTRP
BEMBASEAS 5% BPAOEN

BEMBASEAS 65 HES

BAYEREER PR EMR

EVEICHE) HAERER
NETE

BB WEALERE
ER(BITR) B gEEe

FBa RS A BRANBRLE
E15%(BITK) BlE15%ES

ERAHRAT

BEGHE] ERE
E1H(BATL)

BREGHENZ 165 TEREHN
REEGHES RES A
FE 8 (BTA) fBEs

BANBRE BANBREE
8| (B3TK) o e

Z-Z-ME
BHCEE
e

BEGHENS 165 BE £EHENS
REBSFE
EYSEHCHYY

EBesHE BUBBERES
ER (K ey

FBa RS A REZEERY
£10% INGETX-UN:iPA
REECHES RRBELE
EVIEACHES) A

BB REBE  [ER
F10% - £125% ABNERNE F

AaiE] hMERS
FE85(BETA)
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BREGHENZ 125 FERFENE
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBI (E)

For the year ended 31 March 2016 2 - —~"F=ZA=+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018

Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements
beginning on or after 1 January 2016
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2016

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date
to be determined

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2017

2.

FER#E] RAIERT &

ARBHREEA(E
AR BwEER])

(&

)
R-ZE—-N\F—A—RH%kH
{4 B 2 R AR A

RZT—"F—A—HxH
&ﬁ%%%ﬁﬁf%%%%
WE R BT AR

RZT—R"F—A—H%kH
BFRRFE R AR

RFE BRI ERNF
JE AR AKX

—hF—A—H=H
BFBHFEE R AR

R-T—tF—A—H=H
& B8R RO & Z HAR A R
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
RI RS AR R & (#8)

For the year ended 31 March 2016 &#Z - ZF—~F=A=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs”) (continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial assets.
HKFRS 9 amended in 2010 includes the requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition, and further amended in 2013 to include the new
requirements for hedge accounting. Another revised version of
HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014 mainly to include a) impairment
requirements for financial assets and b) limited amendments
to the classification and measurement requirements by
introducing a ‘fair value through other comprehensive income’
(FVTOCI) measurement category for certain simple debt
instruments.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

° All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement are subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are
held within a business model whose objective is to collect
the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding are generally
measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. Debt instruments that are held within
a business model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets, and that have contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are measured at FVTOCI. All other
debt investments and equity investments are measured
at their fair value at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make
an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held
for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.

FERFET REIETE
BIEREERN(E
BT REZER )
(48)
EAMERELERFEIE
£@mITH
RZZEZNFERH 2 EBETER
LEBEIRSIETBEEZ D
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BRI FEER - OB EEER
FELBRIZET °
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ESan T

s BEAGHENFITA
TR ERNAEHREAN A
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBI (E)

For the year ended 31 March 2016 2 - —~"F=ZA=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs”) (continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

° With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS
9 requires that the amount of change in the fair value
of the financial liability that is attributable to changes
in the credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the
effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value of financial liabilities attributable to changes in
the financial liabilities’ credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire
amount of the change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as fair value through profit or loss was
presented in profit or loss.

° In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed
to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The
expected credit loss model requires an entity to account
for expected credit losses and changes in those expected
credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes
in credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is
no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred
before credit losses are recognised.

2. FER#HFI REIETE
B BEERN( &
B HREZER )
(&)

BB HREER L%
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

R B ERAIEE () )

For the year ended 31 March 2016 &#Z - ZF—~F=A=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs”) (continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

° The new general hedge accounting requirements retain
the three types of hedge accounting. However, greater
flexibility has been introduced to the types of transactions
eligible for hedge accounting, specifically broadening the
types of instruments that qualify for hedging instruments
and the types of risk components of non-financial items
that are eligible for hedge accounting. In addition, the
effectiveness test has been overhauled and replaced with
the principle of an ‘economic relationship’. Retrospective
assessment of hedge effectiveness is also no longer
required. Enhanced disclosure requirements about
an entity’s risk management activities have also been
introduced.

The council members are still assessing the impact of
application of HKFRS 9 on the amounts reported in respect
of the Council’s financial assets and financial liabilities. It is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of
HKFRS 9 until the Council performs a detailed review.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a single comprehensive model for
entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from contracts
with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue
recognition guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11
Construction Contracts and the related Interpretations when it
becomes effective.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBI (E)

For the year ended 31 March 2016 2 - —~"F=ZA=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs”) (continued)
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers (continued)

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the
Standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

° Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

° Step 2. Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

° Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

° Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.

2.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

RI RS AR R & (#8)
For the year ended 31 March 2016 &#Z - ZF—~F=A=+—HIFE
2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND

REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs”) (continued)
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers (continued)

The council members anticipate that the application of HKFRS
15 in the future may have impact on the amounts reported
and disclosures made in the Council’s financial statements.
However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate
of the effect of HKFRS 15 until the Council performs a detailed
review.

Except as described above, the council members do not
anticipate that the application of the other new and revised
HKFRSs will have a material impact on amounts reported in the
financial statements and/or disclosures set out in the financial
statements of the Council.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable HKFRSs, the collective term which includes
all applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBI (E)

For the year ended 31 March 2016 2 - —~"F=ZA=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical
cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Council takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of
HKAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to
fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in
HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.

3.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
RI RS AR R & (#8)

For the year ended 31 March 2016 &#Z - ZF—~F=A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Council and the amount of
revenue and the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of
the transaction, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue
is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) fees for rendering of accreditation services to institutions
are recognised in the period to the extent the
accreditation work is performed;

(i)  advisory fees and consultancy fees are recognised in the
period in which such services are rendered;

(i)  fees for rendering of qualifications assessment services
are recognised in the period in which such assessment
work is completed;
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBI (E)

For the year ended 31 March 2016 2 - —~"F=ZA=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
(iv)  qualifications registry fees are recognised in the period in
which such services are rendered;

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholder’s right to receive payment has been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Council and the amount of income can be measured
reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Council
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Council will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Council
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Specifically, government
grants whose primary condition is that the Council should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets
are recognised as deferred revenue in the statement of financial
position and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and
rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Council with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they become receivable.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 &#Z - ZF—~F=A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated in the statement of financial position
at cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method as follows:

Leasehold improvements Over the remaining term of the

lease
Furniture and equipment 5 years
Computer equipment 5 years

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBI (E)

For the year ended 31 March 2016 2 - —~"F=ZA=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of tangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Council reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Council estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of
cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 &#Z - ZF— R "F=A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TESFHBE(E)

86

POLICIES (continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Council as lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
services entitling them to the contributions.

Taxation
The Council is exempted from Hong Kong Profits Tax by virtue
of section 87 of the Inland Revenue Ordinance.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PUEEESEGELC )

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #{Z - —"F=A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Council has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Council will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision
is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of
those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is
material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle
a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the
Council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 &#Z - ZF—~F=A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

The Council’s financial assets are classified held-to-maturity
investment, available-for-sale (“AFS”) investments and loans
and receivables. The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the
time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.

Held-to-maturity investment

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity dates
that the Council has the positive intent and ability to hold to
maturity.

Subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-maturity investments
are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment (see accounting policy in respect
of impairment losses on financial assets below).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBI (E)

For the year ended 31 March 2016 2 - —~"F=ZA=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as loans
and receivables, held-to-maturity investments or financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Equity and debt securities held by the Council that are classified
as AFS financial assets and are traded in an active market are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Changes in the carrying amount of AFS monetary financial
assets relating to interest income calculated using the effective
interest method and dividends on AFS equity investments
are recognised in profit or loss. Other changes in the carrying
amount of AFS financial assets are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading
of investment revaluation reserve. When the investment is
disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments
revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on financial
assets below).

Dividends on AFS equity investments are recognised in profit
or loss when the Council’s right to receive the dividends is
established.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Loans and receivables (including accounts and other
receivables and bank deposits and cash) are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment (see accounting policy in respect of on impairment
loss on financial assets below).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables (continued)

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate, except for short-term receivables where the recognition of
interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future
cash flows of the investment have been affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered to
be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

o breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

o disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For certain categories of financial assets, such as accounts
receivables, assets are that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Council’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit period, as well
as observable changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets that are carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of accounts receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes
in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When an account receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited against to profit loss.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the
period.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment
at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment losses
previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed through
profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent to an
impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of investments revaluation
reserve.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Council are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Council after deducting all of
its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Council are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

The Council’s financial liabilities, including other payables are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition. Interest expense is
recognised on an effective interest basis.

Derecognition

The Council derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.

The Council derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Council’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING 4. TESIHERTES

94

JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the council members
have made in the process of applying the Council’'s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements.

Held-to-maturity investments

The council members have reviewed the Council’s held-to-
maturity investments in the light of its capital maintenance
and liquidity requirements and have confirmed the Council’s
positive intention and ability to hold those assets to maturity.
The carrying amount of the held-to-maturity investments is
HK$1,027,734 (2015: HK$1,055,041).

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated impairment of held-to-maturity financial
assets and available-for-sale financial assets

On assessing any impairment of the Council’s held-to-maturity
financial assets and available-for-sale financial assets, the
Council evaluates, among other factors, the duration and extent
to which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost;
and the financial health of and near-term business outlook for
the investee, including factors such as industry and sector
performance, changes in technology and operational and
financing cash flow.
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INVESTMENT INCOME 5. REWA
2016 2015
HK$ & HKS$ 78
Interest income FILEYA 252,782 370,420
Dividend income B& 84 A 472,230 919,639
725,012 1,290,059

OTHER INCOME 6. HMA
2016 2015
HK$ &% HKS$ &
Review of non-QF Accreditation 3F& EsF& RIS =E 5 & 7,750 17,058
Consultancy fee from external activities N38)E E) A0 8 ] & 19,711 1,688
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale equity securities € A] i € f% 7R 5855 8 U 2 - 1,690,547
Gain on disposal of fixed assets [&F & & H &z 2,850 3,230
Miscellaneous income EAth Yz A 1,067 46,897
31,378 1,759,420

SURPLUS (DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR 7. XEERER(EIE)

Surplus (deficit) for the year has been arrived at after charging AFERH(BR)EMRGEIA)
(crediting):
2016 2015

HK$ & HKS &5
Salaries, wages and other benefits Fr& « T& Kk EAEF 58,657,937 52,436,721
Contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds 3 &l 14 A f& & 3 1,549,851 1,439,911
Total staff costs 8 T A AN 48 %8 60,207,788 53,876,632
Auditor’ s remuneration % iR EN & 187,650 132,000
Depreciation #T& 9,475,451 8,550,210
Minimum lease payments under operating leases fx{KAL £ E 7 H 95,462 64,445
Interest income from held-to-maturity debt securities
R 2R BEBES OB KA (16,493) (16,793)
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 &#Z - ZF—~F=A=+—HIFE

8. TAXATION 8.
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax had been made
in these financial statements as the Council is exempted
from taxation pursuant to section 87 of the Inland Revenue

BiIE

BR(EBRBIRGDE TR &
PR - Fit B AER
BRFHEBEBNEH -

Ordinance.
9. FIXED ASSETS 9. EEEE
Furniture
Leasehold and Computer
improvements equipment equipment Total

MENRR  REMRE BIMRE 4aza

HKS & HKS & HKS & HKS B ¥
COST A
At 1 April 2014 722014 F 4 A1 H 30,979,553 6,635,545 - 37,615,098
Additions RE 49,000 176,260 3,862,650 4,087,910
Disposals 1% - (197,870) - (197,870)
At 31 March 2015 72201543 A 31 H 31,028,553 6,613,935 3,862,650 41,505,138
Additions RE 55,000 548,337 132,277 735,614
Disposals H%& - (43,533) - (43,533)
At 31 March 2016 72201643 A 31 H 31,083,553 7,118,739 3,994,927 42,197,219
ACCUMULATED

DEPRECIATION 5+ &

At 1 April 2014 20144 H1H 11,403,085 4,664,031 - 16,067,116
Charge for the year N EHTE 7,850,187 700,023 - 8,550,210
Eliminated on disposals H & # § - (197,870) - (197,870)
At 31 March 2015 72201543 A31H 19,253,272 5,166,184 - 24,419,456
Charge for the year N E T8 7,886,854 789,612 798,985 9,475,451
Eliminated on disposals H & # §H - (39,6993) - (39,693)
At 31 March 2016 2 2016 3 A 31 H 27,140,126 5,916,103 798,985 33,855,214
NET BOOK VALUE [ F{&E
At 31 March 2016 72201643 A 31 H 3,943,427 1,202,636 3,195,942 8,342,005
At 31 March 2015 7220154 3 A31H 11,775,281 1,447,751 3,862,650 17,085,682
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10. INVESTMENTS 10. ®E

2016 2015
HK$ 78 ¥ HKS &%

Unlisted held-to-maturity debt securities, at amortised cost
JE F A R EER R H REBHKA) 1,027,734 1,055,041
Available-for-sale equity securities listed in Hong Kong,
at market value
EEE LHO A HEERAES(RTE) 12,272,150 14,749,900

13,299,884 15,804,941

Analysed as: D5 :
Current i) 1,027,734 -
Non-current 3E7Eh 12,272,150 15,804,941

13,299,884 15,804,941

Fair value of held-to-maturity debt securities

BEZIMEBRESNAAEE 1,025,210 1,051,600
£
11. ACCOUNTS AND OTHER 11. EWRER A H b fE
x=h
RECEIVABLES &
2016 2015
HKS$ & HKS$ &
Accounts receivable &L BE X 5,205,846 5,202,428
Deposits, other receivables and prepayments &4  Hib Uz M B 3,780,026 1,733,108
Interest receivable J&UF & 168,706 204,907
9,154,578 7,140,443
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 &#Z - ZF—~F=A=+—HIFE

11. ACCOUNTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These take into account
the customer’s past payment history, financial position
and other factors. These accounts receivables are due on
presentation of billings. Normally, apart from certain customers
with good credit ratings, advances are requested from
customers to cover the service fee before rendering of services
by the Council.

Included in the Council’s accounts receivables are debtors
with aggregate carrying amount of HK$2,700,203 (2015:
HK$1,657,704) which are past due at the end of the reporting
period for which the Council has not provided for impairment
loss. The Council does not hold any collateral over these
balances. Based on the historical experiences of the Council,
those receivables that are past due but not impaired are
generally recoverable as there was no recent history of default
and there has not been a significant change in credit quality of
the customers.

Aging of accounts receivables which are past due but not

1. BEWERR A H A FE

LENE )
AREHHMEBL —E8ERE
ENEFPEMEENE - ZEE
FEEERERP AERM KA
B BRI R E A o L
FEM AR R R FER AR A » —
BMmE - FRENEELER TN
BESN ABREHREATEE
REPEMRGEM -

KABHEWRIE LA REER
7E#62,700,203 TL(ZE—RHF
#1,657,704 70 )  ZFEUER TR
ERACHH - ARBTERZE
EREEMNER - REARB
FEs EHRBETERED
FEW AR KRB P W R FL 8 R H

B #8 HI{E 30 #0508 /O FE AR SR

impaired: BRES
2016 2015
HKS$ &% HKS$ B
Less than 1 month 11& AR 2,397,603 1,649,704
More than 1 month 118 A A E 302,600 8,000
2,700,203 1,657,704
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12, RITERRRE

2016 2015
HK$ 78 ¥ HKS &%

Deposits with banks $R177E 817 21,673,211 23,272,400
Cash at bank and other financial institutions and in hand

B MIRTTSRH M B ST X 43,833,131 18,572,615
Bank deposits and cash in the statement of financial position

SRR HRITIER LIRS 65,506,342 41,845,015

Less: Bank deposits with maturity of more than three

months at acquisition
B AR AR =8 A A EEIEBRIRI TR 5K

(18,054,323) (20,087,284)

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows

RenBRMTINREMREFEY

DEFERRED GOVERNMENT GRANTS

47,452,019 21,757,731
13. IEEBUF B
2016 2015

HKS & ¥ HK$ /& ¥

Balance as at 1 April ¥4 A 1 B4

Grants received and receivable 2 W Kz & U ## B

Interest thereon 5T 2

Recognised as income during the year R 2 &R AUA

Balance as at 31 March 723 A 31 B4 &4
Less: Amount shown under current liabilities

B RBBERTAEENSEHR

Amount shown under non-current liabilities

FEREBREIR NN EER

10,344,293 8,855,079
2,551,901 4,238,247
16,197 18,423
(4,105,819) (2,762,456)
8,806,572 10,344,293
(3,462,211) (3,622,573)
5,344,361 6,821,720

The grants are for supporting the costs of the Qualify
Enhancement Support Scheme projects and relocation costs of

the new office of the Council.

RN ERRET R E
HEORA  URABHRER
HYIRE AN o
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 &#Z - ZF— R "F=A=+—HIFE

14. DEFERRED REVENUE 14.

Deferred revenue represents amounts billed or received for
programme accreditation, advice on the registration of non-
local courses and qualifications assessment, less amounts
recognised as income during the year.

15. PROVISION FOR STAFF 15.

GRATUITIES

IEFEW A

BERABENRREITE - I
R 3 2K b0 SRAS £ FU A S 42
EERMABRKBHEE 1
B FEREERARANS BT

=
e

BT XmMEEE

2016 2015
HKS$ &% HKS &

Balance as at 1 April X4 A1 H
Provision made IR &
Provision utilised = F 24

4,564,149 5,705,859
4,521,553 3,472,490
(3,057,812) (4,614,200)

Balance as at 31 March A3 A 31 H
Less: Amount shown under current liabilities

B RBBERTAEENSHR

6,027,890 4,564,149

(3,622,749) (2,287,058)

Amount shown under non-current liabilities

FERBABER THEEN S

2,405,141 2,277,091

16. RESERVES 16.

(@) Components of the Council’s reserves
The opening and closing balances of each component
of the Council’s reserves and reconciliation between
these amounts are set out in the statement of changes in
reserves.

(b) Investment revaluation reserve
The investment revaluation reserve comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of available-for-
sale securities held at the end of the reporting period and
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies in
note 3.

G

(a) ARFE#FERER
BREDEITARES
Bl e BRI R
MR ERBIIR EREE
7 8088 7 B -

(b) REEfRHE
BABHEERANEE A
PR AT G S AR (B
R REFE - LIRS
33 PO B AR BREE -
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PUEEESEGELC )

E-RNF-A=+T—HILLFE

17. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 17. EXE R EE
Since the Council is not profit-oriented and is not subject ARA R IEE T R EZH R T
to any externally imposed capital requirements, its primary AN R ERESK » A A BE
financial and capital management objectives are to maintain BREREENTERIZRHE
a balance between annual income and expenditure, so that it FEWSE FE - AR TS
has the ability to operate as a going concern and perform its KBV KEEAmEELZEAR®
statutory roles and functions. The Coundil is primarily financed HENRBITETHEE - NBH
through the charging of fees for academic and vocational B BRI EH 20 &8
accreditation services rendered which include validations, EERIERBUBRNER &
revalidations, institutional reviews, qualifications assessments EREEERE  EFHE - Pt
and advisory/consultancy services. Any operating surplus shall Wizt~ BE (A KNEH B
be carried forward to the following financial year to meet future MR - A& ERGALES
expenditure required for the operations of the Coundil. BEEMBMBEE  UEMRER
REEMHERNHAR
The Council’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior ZIK PR EERKEEFHITN
years. The capital structure of the Council consists of cashand % c REMEARBEREL &R
cash equivalents and accumulated surpluses. fﬁﬁﬁ%‘i M RETEER o
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 18. €@t T A
Categories of financial instruments R T EMER
2016 2015
HK$ & HKS /&%
Financial assets £BE&E &
Held-to-maturity investments #5748 = ZI|#j1& & 1,027,734 1,055,041
Available-for-sales investments A] £ H &% & 12,272,150 14,749,900
Loans and receivables (including cash and cash equivalents)
ERRERFE(BERE KRS EEY) 71,364,405 47,735,710
84,664,289 63,540,651
Financial liabilities < @& f&
Amortised cost B & 5k AN 2,059,524 4,901,164
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18. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Council’s major financial instruments include held-to-
maturity investment, available-for-sale investments, accounts
and other receivables, bank deposits and cash and other
payables. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
the respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (other price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on
a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

Other price risk

The Council is exposed to equity price change risk arising from
its available-for-sale equity security listed in Hong Kong as
disclosed in note 10.

The Council’s equity investment is company listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong. This equity investment has been
chosen based on their longer term growth potential and are
monitored regularly for performance against expectations.

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on
the exposure to equity price risks at the reporting date.

If the prices of the respective equity instruments had been 10%
(2015: 10%) higher/lower and all other variables held constant,
the investment revaluation reserve would increase/decrease by
HK$1,227,215 (2015: increase/decrease by HK$1,474,990)
for the Council as a result of the changes in fair value of the
available-for-sale investments.

18. €T E (&)
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18. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

The applied change of percentage represented management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in stock prices.
The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change in the Council’s surplus (deficit) for the year and
investment revaluation reserve that would arise assuming
that changes in the market value had occurred at the balance
sheet date and had been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Council which expose the Council to
equity price risk at balance sheet date. It is also assumed that
none of the Council’s available-for-sale equity security would
be considered impaired as a result of a decrease in the prices
of respective equity security and that all other variables remain
constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for
2015.

Credit risk

As at 31 March 2016, the Council’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Council due to
failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising
from the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the statement of financial position.

The Council’s credit risk is primarily attributable to bank
deposits, accounts receivables and investments in debt
securities.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Council has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Council reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade debt at the end of the reporting period
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the council members
consider that the Council’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

18. €T E (&)

BEEREEEERBE
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HE R (4)

ERBE LHMESAEEEHRK
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BRESNBEREBRERFERS
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18. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The Council’'s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer. At the end of
the reporting period, the Council had a certain concentration of
credit risk as 40% and 82% (2015: 24% and 78%) of the total
accounts receivables that were due from the largest customer
and the five largest customers.

Bank deposits are normally placed with financial institutions
which have good credit ratings. Investments in debt securities
are with counterparties of sound credit ratings. Given their high
credit ratings, management does not expect any investment
counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Council maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and readily realisable marketable
securities and adequate committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and long term.

At the end of the reporting period, the Council’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities is mainly repayable
on demand or within three months from the end of respective
reporting periods. In the opinion of council members, the
difference between the carrying amounts of the financial
liabilities and the undiscounted cash flows based on the
earliest date on which the Council can be required to pay is not
significant and therefore, no further analysis is presented.

18. €T E (&)

BEEREEBERBE
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18. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 18. TR T A (4&)

(continued)

Financial risk management objectives and EREEEERBEE

policies (continued) (%)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments THETANA L EEE

This note provides information about how the Council W EFHEARNAEESES

determines fair value of various financial assets. RMEEMRRE -

()  Fair value of the Council’s financial assets that are () IREEEEENAQNAEBER
measured at fair value on a recurring basis. ENEAREMEE
The Council’s available-for-sale investments are ABEAHHERERREIS KR
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting NAEBEE - TRINSWAE
period. The following table gives information about how FltemMEENAABE(LERE
the fair value of this financial asset is determined (in RANEERERBEAZE) -

particular, the valuation technique and input used).

Valuation technique

Fair value and key input
Far value as at hierarchy fHEFER
AREER AREBEER ZE@AE

Financial assets 2016 2015
eRMEE HK$ &%  HK$ B
Available-for-sale equity 12,272,150 14,749,900 Level 1 Quoted bid price

securities F— in an active market
A ERARE S TERTSFTRE AE
There were no transfers into or out of Level 1. F—EWELMABAREL -
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZ -2 —XF=A=+—HItFE

18. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)
Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(continued)

(i)

Fair values of financial assets that are not measured at fair
value on a recurring basis (but fair value disclosures are
required)

Except as detailed in the following table, the council
members consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recognised in the financial
statements approximate their fair values.

18.

LRI AE)

S EREE B ERBER
(%)
BT AN AL ME B ()

i)y SEEEUAABEFENSD
MEE(BAEHEBEEAALE
&) :

BRTRAR - ARKERRER
EMBHRERCEBEENEHBE
ERRREEEEE AR ERL

2016 2015
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value
FRES%E AREE RESE NAERE
HKS$ &% HK$ &% HKS &1 HKS &%
Held-to-maturity debt securities
B EIREBES 1,027,734 1,025,210 1,055,041 1,051,600

19. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
At the end of the reporting period, the Council had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

19.

REHERE

PR K - AR AR BT A
EERER AR RBIERER
SRR ABDT ;

2016 2015

HK$ & HKS /&%

Within one year —F A 5 12
In the second to fifth years inclusive 28 — =B A F (HRMFBIELEN) - 5
5 17

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Council for its office premises. Leases are negotiated for an
average term of 5 years and rentals are fixed for an average of
5 years. The Council has an option to renew the lease when all
terms are renegotiated.

REHENTBEREABDEN
MAZENHEE - BHORHEE R
EFEREFH - NeRRERE
M MBI RETTER 5 o
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20. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All transactions related to the provision of accreditation services
to organisations in which a member of the Council, key
management personnel and the HKSAR Government may have
an interest are conducted in the normal course of business and
in accordance with the Council’s fee charging policy and fee
schedule as prescribed by the Ordinance.

Except as disclosed in (iv) and (v) below, all transactions
related to the procurement of goods and services involving
organisations in which a member of the Council, key
management personnel and the HKSAR Government may have
an interest are conducted in the normal course of business
and in accordance with the Council’s financial obligations and
normal procurement procedures.

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Council had the

following related party transactions:

(i) Honorarium paid to Council members in the capacity of

20. BEL XS

PMEREAREFENRE BRRE
BEABMBFA N BT
MABEBRHHBEFEGHE
5 WEZBRAFNE BEKIER
RRGEPIFTAR B A —BEREUK
R -

BRUATR (iv) K (v) TEFTIREE &SN + BT
BHAREELRE  BRERE
AEFET A Az 0 Mg #E1TH
ERMBREZSHEBIESELE
1B WEERBABHTHRAI KX
FERBIE T

B B 7 R PR BB 1O X 5 AN
BRON - RREBBATEH AR -

() ABRKBUATREDFTURE
BN S

2016 2015
HKS$ /& HKS &

Non-local Council members JEZRH#1AK B

246,390 208,000

Local Council members are not remunerated.

(i)  Key management personnel remuneration

AREEGAMKE L T
g -

iy FEAREEAENS

2016 2015
HKS$ &% HKS &

Salaries and other emoluments ¥ & & E b il &
Retirement scheme contributions ERst &It 7

5,869,563 6,114,211
24,000 35,000

5,893,563 6,149,211
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBI (E)

For the year ended 31 March 2016 &#Z - ZF— R "F=A=+—HIFE

20. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

Key management personnel remuneration (continued)

Key management personnel comprise of the Executive
Director, Deputy Executive Director (Academic), Deputy
Executive Director (Vocational) and Financial Controller.
The above remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see
note 7).

During the year ended 31 March 2016, approximately
18% (2015: 22%) of the Council’s total income
are derived from services provided to the HKSAR
Government, and approximately 15% (2015: 19%) of it
are derived from services provided to other government-
related entities. All the services are conducted in the
normal course of business and in accordance with
the Council’s fee charging policy and fee schedule as
prescribed by the Ordinance.

Effective from 1 September 2011, the Council has
entered into a lease with the HKSAR Government and
rented a vacant school premises in Siu Sai Wan Estate,
Chai Wan, Hong Kong at a charge of $1 per month as
its new office for an initial term of five years. The Council
completed the relocation of its office in July 2012. The
HKSAR Government also provided HK$10 million funding
support for conversion and renovation of the new office of
the Council (see note 13).

20. REFRZ ()

(i)

(i)

(iv)

AR ABE (&)

FHREEAEREARE -
BlEnE(84)  JlR%sE
(B2 ) M TS 488 o bt i
SEATEIAA] (25K
OIS

HEe_ZT—R"&F=-A=1—
AIEFE @ EABRMBKA
$'mmw—%—£¢'
mwx@mﬁth
7% #15% (= £$
mwxaﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁm%
EEIRER - 1A RS
BIEBEREE - WEILR
$%%E%@%ﬁ%&ﬁw
R ER— Bk &
}Eﬁ °

H-_E——FLA—HE-
KBREBNEE T —HEE
W AT BB TR
ﬁﬁ%%%%%d 7o g —
Freg8Rnis  ERHN
WMAE  YIEHEFHAR
FoRARR-ZZE—=FtA
TERIRE o BB TS
¥1,0008LE S BIA
REBERE AMAE MR
BB (28ME13) -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PUEEESEGELC )

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #{Z - —"F=A=+—HIFE

20. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

V)

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the HKSAR
Government also provided funding support of
approximately HK$nil (2015: HK$1,050,000) and
HK$938,834 (2015: HK$2,661,000), respectively,
for phase | and Il of the Council’s IT infrastructure
development project, HK$1,243,200 (2015: HK$522,000)
for the good practices in quality assurance project,
and HK$3,000,000 (2015: HK$1,750,000) for the daily
maintenance and regular upgrading of the QR.

20. REFRZ ()

V)

HE_Z2—XRF=A=+—
AIEFE  HEBRFED
BARNE—NRE_HE
AR E MR IE B R
THEBEEL(ZE—RF:
7 11,050,000 ) N B
938,834 T (ZZE—FhF : #
#2,661,0007C ) B & & °
BN B INBE ERFETE
B iR 781,243,200
—T—FHF : Ak 522,000
TT) R B EEEMNTE S
BRE A R R TR
3,000,000 t( = — R F :
751,750,000 7T) °
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Analysis of Expenditure

Suapaxil
For the year ended 31 March 2016 &#Z —ZF—~F=HF=+—H -4/
2016 2015
HK$ & HKS$ &
STAFF COSTS ET & A&
Salaries #& 52,956,790 47,988,704
Allowances and other staff costs 284 & E 8 T A 7,250,997 5,887,928
60,207,787 53,876,632
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 1T (& A
Auditor’ s remuneration #Z EEM & 187,650 132,000
Bank charges $R1TF/EE 34,392 29,055
Cleaning /B2 & 539,591 290,770
Community relations #t [ B3 1% 44,576 65,485
Consultancy fees E8[H & 1,009,633 1,551,673
Depreciation #7& 9,475,451 8,550,210
Incidental expenses B 37 H 7,065 7,917
Insurance R 2 250,580 281,201
Legal advisory fees JAfE KN E 742,368 299,085
Membership fee & 8 & 127,618 83,284
Others HAib 116,326 92,633
Overseas visits and conferences J8 %Mt 55 & 32 243,468 370,972
Periodicals, newspapers and books EAT!| « S4XFIE & 15,057 15,593
Photocopying #/EN% 30,222 30,955
Postage & 34,908 39,743
Printing EN & 157,780 138,288
Publicity 5 {##& 258,229 278,234
Recruitment and training 1852 & 153 66,647 54,119
Rent and rates & 2= &1 381,806 191,556
Repairs and maintenance #4{& MIR&E B 155,173 715,814
Securities transaction charges FF 45 E & & 5,050 4,825
Security (R% & 286,768 165,600
Stationery and consumables X B FSE 285,201 326,452
Telephone and facsimile B &% A{& & & 411,758 319,886
Tools and equipment T E & A& 1,416,596 910,990
Transport and travelling 23R & 46,743 38,754
Utilities 7K ~ E& 221,832 220,039
Work related research T8RS 150,565 152,401
16,703,053 15,357,534
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Analysis of Expenditure (continued)
XHOHT ()

For the year ended 31 March 2016 2 - —~"F=ZA=+—HIFE

2016 2015
HK$ &% HKS &
DIRECT ACCREDITATION/CONSULTANCY COSTS
HETE ERRA
Accreditation costs 782 9,587,987 7,509,480
Quialifications Register costs & fF &l pk A 2,037,133 2,393,331
11,625,120 9,902,811
COUNCIL MEETING AND COMMITTEE EXPENSES
rEEERZESXH
Air passages #Z 272,555 288,005
Honorarium payments B4 < 2¢ 246,390 208,000
Hotel accommodation & & 13 78 & 91,762 75,856
Working lunches and dinners ‘A 754 8 AR &R Sz 193,582 29,686
Subsistence allowance ZFH & 29,250 24,050
Transport and miscellaneous expenses 338 & N £ 51,844 29,891
885,383 655,488
TOTAL EXPENDITURE X HH# %8 89,421,343 79,792,465
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List of Council
Members

(1 April 2015 to

30 September 2015)

Chairman

The Honourable Martin LIAO Cheung-kong, SBS, JP
Barrister

Martin Liao Barrister

Vice-Chairman

Ir Dr Alex CHAN Siu-kun, BBS
Managing Director

Applied Technology Integration Limited

Non-local Members
Ms Ann DOOLETTE
Education Consultant
AUSTRALIA

Ms Aileen PONTON

Chief Executive

Scottish Credit & Qualifications
Framework

The United Kingdom

Professor Mala SINGH

Professor Extraordinaire

Centre for Higher Education Research,
Teaching and Learning

Rhodes University

SOUTH AFRICA

Professor Andrew WALDER

Professor of Sociology and
Senior Fellow

Department of Sociology

Stanford University

USA

TERKRERE
(20154 H81BZE
20154F9H30AH)

xfE

BRII&E, SBS, JP
BRI KERMEISA
RAERD

BER
BRIKIRE L - BBS
FERIER QA
FERpLE

FARMKE
Ms Ann DOOLETTE
Education Consultant
AUSTRALIA

Ms Aileen PONTON

Chief Executive

Scottish Credit & Qualifications
Framework

The United Kingdom

Professor Mala SINGH

Professor Extraordinaire

Centre for Higher Education Research,
Teaching and Learning

Rhodes University

SOUTH AFRICA

Professor Andrew WALDER

Professor of Sociology and
Senior Fellow

Department of Sociology

Stanford University

USA



Local Members
Mr Roger Thomas BEST, JP

Professor Chetwyn CHAN Che-hin
Chair Professor

Department of Rehabilitation Sciences
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University

Mr Albert CHOW Hing-pong
Head of Academic Quality Assurance
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University

Professor HAU Kit-tai, BBS, MH, JP
Choh-Ming Li Professor of Educational Psychology
The Chinese University of Hong Kong

Ir Dr David HO Chi-shing, JP
Group General Manager
Hong Kong Ferry (Holdings) Company Limited

Dr LAM Ching-choi, BBS, JP
Chief Executive Officer
Haven of Hope Christian Service

Professor Paul LAM Kwan-sing, SBS, JP
Chief-of-Staff (Vice-President)
City University of Hong Kong

Ms Carrie LEUNG Ka-lai
Chief Executive Officer
The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers

Professor Arthur MAK Fuk-tat
Programme Director and Division Head
Biomedical Engineering

The Chinese University of Hong Kong

Professor PONG Ting-chuen
Professor of Computer Science and Engineering

The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology
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I E
Mr Roger Thomas BEST, JP

PR B R
BEBETRE
FRIERERIEZER
BEER

AEHEE
BRI KRE
BMERRELLE

REERHE, BBS, MH, JP
VLI ON-
HE LR RS G EHIR

fAIERELT TR, JP
) m(KE)ERAREHE
GGV SEE

MIERTE 4, BBS, JP
EEHTEHE

TTHAREL

MEIBHUIR, SBS, JP
BEBEWTAE
mERERER)

REBUL
BERRITER
1T HEEL

EREEHR
BEBERKE
EYBRETE
BI T RREET

R
EBRRAE
S EREIB R T8 R
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Ex-officio Members
Mr Brian LO Sai-hung, JP
Deputy Secretary for Education

(Representing the Permanent Secretary for Education)

Professor William LEE Keng-mun (until 13 July 2015)

Executive Director

Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational

Quallifications

List of Council
Members

(1 October 2015 to
31 March 2016)

Chairman

Ir Dr Alex CHAN Siu-kun, BBS
Managing Director

Applied Technology Integration Limited

Vice-Chairman
Mr Roger Thomas BEST, JP

Non-local Members

Mr James CALLEJA

Director

European Centre for the Development
of Vocational Training

GREECE

Ms Jane von DADELSZEN

Education and Government Policy
Consultant

NEW ZEALAND

Ms Ann DOOLETTE
Education Consultant
AUSTRALIA

Professor Andrew WALDER

Professor of Sociology and
Senior Fellow

Department of Sociology

Stanford University

USA

ERARE

Ett#ELE, JP

HERIWER
(HEREITHERAR)
FRTAFE(ZE2015FE7H138)
BB BEERTER
k=S

TERKERE

(201510818 %
20163 A31H)

X

BRIKIRE L, BBS
FERIER AR
FREKE

BERE
Mr Roger Thomas BEST, JP

R R

Mr James CALLEJA

Director

European Centre for the Development
of Vocational Training

GREECE

Ms Jane von DADELSZEN

Education and Government Policy
Consultant

NEW ZEALAND

Ms Ann DOOLETTE
Education Consultant
AUSTRALIA

Professor Andrew WALDER

Professor of Sociology and
Senior Fellow

Department of Sociology

Stanford University

USA



Dr Bryan MAGUIRE

Director of Quality Assurance
Quality and Qualifications Ireland
IRELAND

Local Members

Professor Chetwyn CHAN Che-hin
Chair Professor

Department of Rehabilitation Sciences
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University

Ir Francis CHENG Cho-ying, MH
Director & General Manager (Generation)
The Hong Kong Electric Co. Ltd.

Mr Albert CHOW Hing-pong
Head of Academic Quality Assurance
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University

Professor HAU Kit-tai, BBS, MH, JP
Choh-Ming Li Professor of Educational Psychology
The Chinese University of Hong Kong

Dr LAM Ching-choi, BBS, JP
Chief Executive Officer
Haven of Hope Christian Service

Professor Paul LAM Kwan-sing, SBS, JP
Chief-of-Staff (Vice-President)
City University of Hong Kong

Ms Carrie LEUNG Ka-lai
Chief Executive Officer
The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers

Professor Dennis NG Kee-pui
Associate Vice-President

University Dean of Students

The Chinese University of Hong Kong

Professor PONG Ting-chuen
Professor of Computer Science and Engineering
The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology
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Dr Bryan MAGUIRE

Director of Quality Assurance
Quality and Qualifications Ireland
IRELAND

Kith i} &

PR ST 3%
BEAEIAZREARE(ZHEY)
FRIESBERIE R B I

EREBSTE , MH
FEEERERATA
ExRTEMELE

BAEBEE
FEBEIKE
BifE RRESEE

REFHIER, BBS, MH, JP
LI ON-—
HELER S HREERE

MIERTE 4, BBS, JP
HEBEHEENS
T AEEL

ME B LR, SBS, JP
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WERERE)
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Professor Paul TAM Kwong-hang
Provost and Deputy Vice-Chancellor
The University of Hong Kong

Mr Wilfred WONG Kam-pui, JP

Senior Head of HR & Administration, City Super Group
Managing Director

Resolutions HR & Business Consultancy Co. Ltd.

Ex-officio Members

Mr Brian LO Sai-hung, JP

Deputy Secretary for Education

(Representing the Permanent Secretary for Education)

ERFHR
BB
BREIRE

HEIRWELE, JP

City Super Group A 1 &R &
THEEREE

EREAT kEBERERAR

BRES

EARE

EttELE, JP
HERBEWER
(BERFAMERRR)

Ms Dorte KRISTOFFERSEN (since 2 Nov 2015)

Executive Director (2015511 B2 BBIA)

Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational BB MEBEERETER
Qualifications wHE

FRESCHEHE
EENTEERES

Dorte KRISTOFFERSEN Z +

Terms of Reference of Committees

Qualifications and Accreditation Committee

(QAC)
Terms of Reference ig s |
(@) To consider and make recommendations to the Council on (a) MFEFEFERE - ERIEERF - I

accreditation policies, criteria and procedures relevant to ArERASIREEES  UWETT
the Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and TEBIELEEREETITIEER
Vocational Qualification’s (HKCAAVQ) statutory roles as the RETEBRE - AR B E A AR
Accreditation Authority under the Qualifications Framework 7 o

and those relevant to non-QF-related accreditation/quality

assurance services.

(o) To consider and make recommendations to the Council on b) MWMEEHEEEEFEZMAOBEK
policies and procedures for maintaining the Qualifications B TR ERAZRLE
Register (QR) in fulfiiment of HKCAAVQ's statutory roles as the o UWBITTEREAEREAM
QR Authority. B RHYETEBEE
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(¢) To consider and make recommendations to the Council on
policies, criteria and procedures for undertaking assessments in
regard to:

- Non-local courses
- Continuing Education Fund (CEF) reimbursable courses
- Continuing Professional Development (CPD) courses

- Individual qualifications
- Any other relevant activities

(d) To consider and advise the Council on any other matters
concerning or affecting HKCAAVQ's accreditation, assessment
and consulting services.

(e) To make recommendations to the Council on such matters
within QAC’s remit as they arise.

Membership (As of 31 March 2016)
Professor PONG Ting-chuen (Chair)
Mr Albert CHOW Hing-pong (Deputy Chair)
Mr Roger Thomas BEST, JP
Professor James CALLEJA
Ir Dr Alex CHAN Siu-kun
Professor Chetwyn CHAN Che-hin
Ir Francis CHENG Cho-ying
Ms Jane von DADELSZEN
Ms Ann DOOLETTE
Professor HAU Kit-tai, BBS, MH, JP
Dr LAM Ching-choi, BBS, JP
Professor Paul LAM Kwan-sing, SBS, JP
Ms Carrie LEUNG Ka-lai
Dr Bryan MAGUIRE
Professor Dennis NG Kee-pui
Professor Paul TAM Kwong-hang
Professor Andrew WALDER
Mr Wilfred WONG Kam-pui, JP
Ms YONG Pui-wan, Pecvin
(Education Bureau, Principal Assistant Secretary,
representative of Permanent Secretary for Education)
Ms Dorte KRISTOFFERSEN
(Executive Director of HKCAAVQ)
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EREHE(ER)

AEHEEEIER)

Mr Roger Thomas BEST, JP

Professor James CALLEJA

PRI IE A

PR BT 2

BRI A

Ms Jane von DADELSZEN

Ms Ann DOOLETTE

FERZFE, BBS, MH, JP

MIEBFEE A&, BBS, JP

B HUIX, SBS, JP

PRBr+

Dr Bryan MAGUIRE

REBH

BRETHE

Professor Andrew WALDER

mIMESE, JP

SmMEZ+
HERERPEWER
(HBERBAMERRR)

Ms Dorte KRISTOFFERSEN
(BEEMEBEERTERERSE)
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Finance Committee (FC)

Terms of reference

@

To consider and recommend, for the Council’s endorsement,
the annual budget of the Hong Kong Council for Accreditation
of Academic and Vocational Qualifications (HKCAAVQ),
including any subsequent adjustments thereof.

To consider the medium and long term financial plans of
HKCAAVQ.

To keep under review the financial position of HKCAAVQ,
including its return on investment and fee charging policy, and
make recommendations to the Council as appropriate.

To receive, consider and recommend, for the Council’s
approval, the audited financial statements.

To recommend, for the Council’s approval, the appointment of
Auditors.

To monitor available cash balances and make
recommendations concerning the liquidation of investments to
ensure that an appropriate level of cash reserves is maintained.

To periodically review internal controls of HKCAAVQ as they
relate to financial and accounting matters.

To make recommendations to the Council on such matters
within FC’s remit as they arise.
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Membership (As of 31 March 2016)
Mr Roger Thomas BEST, JP (Chair)
Ir Francis CHENG Cho-ying (Deputy Chair)
Professor PONG Ting-chuen
Mr Albert CHOW Hing-pong
Ms Jane von DADELSZEN
Professor Paul LAM Kwan-sing, SBS, JP
Ms Carrie LEUNG Ka-lai
Dr Bryan MAGUIRE
Professor Paul TAM Kwong-hang
Professor Andrew WALDER
Ms YONG Pui-wan, Pecvin
(Education Bureau, Principal Assistant Secretary,
representative of Permanent Secretary for Education)
Ms Dorte KRISTOFFERSEN
(Executive Director of HKCAAVQ)

Personnel and Administration Committee (PAC)

Terms of reference

@)

()

To keep under review the staffing structure of the Secretariat.

To monitor human resources policies and practices of the Hong
Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational
Qualification and to recommend changes when necessary,
paying particular attention to staff development and training, the
remuneration package and matters of staff welfare.

To consider adjustments to the staff salary based on
the outcomes of the annual performance appraisal and
development review.

To keep under review the administrative efficiency of the
Secretariat.

To make recommendations to the Council on such matters
within PAC’s remit as they arise.
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Membership (As of 31 March 2016)
Ms Carrie LEUNG Ka-lai (Chair)
Dr LAM Ching-choi, BBS, JP (Deputy Chair)
Professor James CALLEJA
Ir Dr Alex CHAN Siu-kun
Professor Chetwyn CHAN Che-hin
Ms Jane von DADELSZEN
Ms Ann DOOLETTE
Professor HAU Kit-tai, BBS, MH, JP
Professor Dennis NG Kee-pui
Mr Wilfred WONG Kam-pui, JP
Ms YONG Pui-wan, Pecvin
(Education Bureau, Principal Assistant Secretary,
representative of Permanent Secretary for Education)
Ms Dorte KRISTOFFERSEN
(Executive Director of HKCAAVQ)

RE(BZE2016E3A31H)

PEBLT(ER)

M IEBF 884, BBS, JP(BIE/E)

Professor James CALLEJA

BRIKIRIE L

PRAS EF R

Ms Jane von DADELSZEN

Ms Ann DOOLETTE

FEHZFHIE, BBS, MH, JP

RESEHIR

=imi A, JP

SMEZL

HERERPEWER
(HBEREBEARERRT)

Ms Dorte KRISTOFFERSEN
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